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The future is a vast horizon of immense
potential - a potential that can only be
realized by long-term planning,
judicious allocation of finances and
Strategic thinking. But this blueprint
can turn to reality only when the
present has a solid foundation. At IIFCL,
we are not just investing in a range of
infrastructure projects, it is the future
we are investing in!

AS IIFCL continues its endeavour to fulfil
its mandate to the nation, tomorrow is
allset toopen up a new era of progress.




1:
’
|

From the
Chairman's Desk

Gentlemen,

It gives me great pleasure in welcoming all of you to the Third Annual General Meeting of the India
Infrastructure Finance Company Ltd. The audited accounts of the company for the year ended March 31,
2008 together with the Directors' Report are with you and with your permission, | shall take them as read. |

take this opportunity to share with you the macro economic developments and the performance of the
company during the financial year 2007-08.

Economic Environment

Indian economy has made a decisive shift to high growth phase. The average growth achieved during the
10th Five Year Plan was 7.9%, with growth touching 9.6% in 2006-07. Infact, GDP growth has surpassed 8 per
cent every year since 2003-04. GDP growth du ring 2007-08 is placed at 9%. Despite global uncertainties arising

out of the subprime crisis in USA, rising oil prices and global food supply shortages, Indian economy is
expected to grow by 8% during the current year.

Agricultural production during 2007-08 is likely to be 227 million tonnes compared to 217 million tonnes in
the previous year, recording a growth of 4.6%. Industrial sector has been showing robust growth and index
of industrial growth during 2007-08 was 8.5% compared to 11.5% achieved in the previous vear. This decline
in industrial production was mostly due to fall in the growth rate of manufacturing sector. With surge in
economic activity and stability, there has been an upsurge in domestic and foreign investments. As a result,
investment rate or Gross Capital Formation has increased from 25.2% of GDP in 2001-02 to 35.9% of GDP in

2006-07. Gross Domestic Savings, on the other hand, has continued to rise from 26% to 34.8% during the
above period..

Inflation measured in terms of Wholesale Price Index touched 7.4% on 29th March 2008, the highest level
. since 4th December 2004. The price rise has been essentially due to increase in global demand for rice, edible
'r= oils, milk and dairy products, cotton , steel and fuels. India has been a major exporter of rice and cotton and
importer of edible oil. In both the cases, in the wake of global demand, prices have hardened. Government of
India came out with a slew of measures to control inflation including removal of barriers against import of

t edible oils, and reduction in export of rice and pulses.

7 Although inflation has been mainly supply side driven, keeping with its stance of maintaining price stability,
Jf Reserve Bank of India raised the Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR) by 50 basis points in two stages - 25 bp with effect
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from April 26, 2008 and another 25 bp from May 10, 2008.
Infrastructure Sector

With strong economic growth, infrastructure has come under pressure. During 2007-08, the performance of
infrastructure sectors covering electricity, transport, communications and urban infrastructure present a
subdued picture compared to the same period in the previous year.

Electricity generation posted a deceleration in growth to 6.6% during the period April-December 2007-08
compared to 7.5% in the same period in 2006-07. A capacity addition of 78,577 MW has been planned during
the 11th Five Year Plan and the power sector is expected to grow by 9.5% per annum. In the road sector, the
Golden QuadriLateral(GQ) project has almost been completed. As of November 30, 2007, over 7,900 Kms of
National highways had been completed which includes the GQ part as well. Upgradation of 12,108 Km under

the NHDP Phase Il has been approved. Despite facing constraints like land acquisition and removal of
structures, the road sector has continued to progress.

In the airport sector, there has been significant growth. Passenger traffic has doubled between 2004 and
2007 and cargo traffic has increased by more than 45 percent during the period. While the Hyderabad and
Bangalore airports became operational, the upgrading of Kolkata and Chennai airports has been taken up.
Programme of modernisation of 35 non-metro airports is also being taken up. The Airport Econonomic
Regulatory Authority (AERA) is proposed to be set up to foster healthy competition among airports and
encourage investmentin airport facilities.

Upto October 2007 during 2007-08, the cargo handled by major ports registered a growth of 14% against
9.5% in the same period in the previous year. Container traffic posted a growth of 14% during the five years
ending 2006-07. Exports during April-February 2008 posted a year-on-year growth of 23%. Imports also rose
during the period at 30.3% compared to 25.4% in the carresponding period in the previous year.

The 11th Plan (2007-2012) has envisaged to raise the Gross Capital Formation in infrastructure from 4.6% of
GDP to 8% by the end of plan. As per the Projections for Infrastructure during the 11th Plan made by the
Planning Commission, total investment requirements work out to Rs20,27,169 crore or USD 494.43 billion.
Since, such huge investment requirements cannot be met entirely out of public sector, private
participation, particularly, through the Private-Public Partnership (PPP) model is being emphasized upon.
This offers opportunities for the company in terms of business growth.

Catalyzing Development of Infrastructure

IIFCL which commenced operations frorﬁApril 2006 is governed in terms of the Scheme for Financing Viable
Infrastructure Projects through lIFet, broadly referred to assi FTI.

The broad features of the SIFTIinter-alia include:

® |IFCLshall finance commercially viable infrastructure projects implemented by a public sector company,
private sector company either under a PPP initiative or MouU arrangement.

In case of private sector projects, lending of the company shall not exceed 20% of total lending in any
accounting year.

® Projectswhicharesetupona“non-recourse” basis would only be financed by the company.

® Total lending by the company to any project shall not exceed 20% of the total project subject to
exposure of IIFCL being less than that of the lead bank.

® |IFCL shall finance projects in designated sectors like Jroads, railways, seaports, airports, inland

waterways, power, urban infrastructure, gas pipelines, international convention centers and other
tourism related infrastructure projects.

Performance Highlights

Iwould now like to focus on the performance of the company during the year under review.
Within this short span of two vears since inception, the company has positioned itself strongly in the area of
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financing infrastructure development in the country. The highlights of the company's performance during

2007-08 are:

® Grossloan approvals during the year wasRs 8559 crore,

® Oncumulative basis, loan approvalsamounted of 16,969 crorein 78 projects.

L]
executed.

® Balance sheet size increased from Rs785 crore to Rs4333 crore.

® Non-performing Advances (NPAs) were NIL.

® NetWorthincreased fromRs107 crore to Rs832 crore.

In45 projects, disbursements have been made to the tune of Rs1684 crore.

® Profit Before Taxincreased by 260% from Rs9.38 crore to Rs33.76 crore.
-

® Profit After Tax grew by 306% from Rs3.47 crore to Rs14.10 crore.

Iwould like to briefly touch upon some of important performance highlights.

Loan approvals

Of the 78 projects financed, 65 projects have achieved financial closure and documents have been

During the year, the company sanctioned financial assistance of Rs8559 crore to 32 infrastructure projects.
The total project cost in these projects was Rs62, 472 crore and spread across various states in the country.

Sectorwise Loan Sanctions 2007-08

Sector

Road

Power

Airport

Seaport

Urban Infrastructure
Total

Cumuiative sanctions

No of projects

19

1
32

Loan
approved
Rs crore

1981
5334
1000
230
14
8559

Project cost
Rs crore

10696
41270
8890
1546
70
62,472

On cumulative basis, the total sanctions provided in the two years of operations of the company amounted
toRs16,969 crore in 78 projects involving a total project cost of Rs1,18,703 crore.

Sector

Roads
Power
Airport
Seaport
Urban infra
Total
State-wise sanctions

-

No of
projects

51
20
2

4

1
78

Loan
approved
Rs crore

5,188
9,237
2,150
280

14
16,969

Project cost
Rs crore

28,703
72,458
14,716
2,756

70
1,18,703

During the year, the company expanded its financial assistance to more projects in different states. As a
result, the number of states covered increased from 16 in 2006-07 to 19 in 2007-08.
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No. State

1 ANDHRA PRADESH
2 CHHATISHGARH

-] DELHI

4 CUJARAT

5 HARAYANA

6 HIMACHAL PRADESH
7 KARNATAKA

8 KERALA

9 MADHYA PRADESH
10  MAHARASHTRA

11 ORISSA

12  PONDICHERRY

13 PUNJAB

14  RAJASTHAN

15 SIKKIM

16  TAMIL NADU

17 UTTAR PRADESH
18  UTTARAKHAND

19  WEST BENGAL

Grand Total

No. of
Projects

8
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3
3
78

Project Cost
(RS crore)

3923
286
8890
29819
2501
999
6307
565
2715
14549
1350
734,
883
5000
8900
8039
9994.
2682
10568
1,18,703

Loan Sanctioned
by IIFCL (Rs crore)

712.00
50.00
1000.00
3445.00
495.00
183.00
842.00
100.00
525.00
2275.00
250.00
112.50
140.00
500.00
940.00
1475.00
1770.00
514.00
1640.00
16968.50

The highest number of projects were assisted in the state of Tamil Nadu (14) followed by Maharashtra and
uttar Pradesh (9 each). In value terms, the highest assistance was availed by Gujarat at Rs3445 crore, followed

byMaharashtraat Rs2275 crore.

Disbursements

During the year, the company disbursed Rs1542 crore in 36 projects. Thus the cumulative loan disbursed at
the end of March 2008 amounted to Rs1684 crore in 45 projects involving a total project cost of Rs64,349

crore.

Sector

Road
Port
Airport
Power
Total

Financial Closure of projects

No. of Projects

31
2
2
10
45

Sectorwise disbursements as on 31st March 2008

Project Cost
Rs crore

28,469
1210
1472

33199
64,349

Loan disbursed
Rs crore

756
107
298
523
1684

Of the 78 projects so far assisted, as many as 65 projects, representing 83%, have achieved financial closure
and documents have been signed. The total loans sanctioned to these projectsamounted to Rs14,424 crore.
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sectorwise projects which have achieved financial closure
Sector No. of Projects Project Cost Loan sanctioned
Rs crore Rs crore
Road a?2 22,662 4,147
Power 16 63,603 7,733
Airport 2 14,716 2,150
Port 4 2,756 380
Urban infra 1 : 70 14
Total 65 1,03,807 14,424

Towards improving urban infrastructure: pooled Municipal Debt Obligations

Higher economic growth leads to faster urbanization. Currently, urban poplﬁation constitutes 29% of total
population. It is estimated that by 2030, India's urban population would touch 40%. This will add to further
pressures on urban infrastructure by way of demand for water, sanitation, solid waste management,
electricity, roads and transportation. Recognizing this, Government of India has announced various
initiatives for developmentand improvement of urban infrastructure. The Jawaharlal Nehru National Urban
Renewal Mission (JNNURM), which is the largest urban renewal initiative, is aimed at planned development of

identified cities by ensuring adequate funds. Under the JNNURM, covernment of India would be
contributing Rs50,000 crore as grants.

IIFCL has participated in a Pooled Municipal Debt Obligation (PMDO) Facility as a co-sponsor with a committed
contribution of R$150 crore. The facility which hasa corpus of Rs3000 crore intends tocreate an environment
where Urban Local Bodies (ULBs), state governments and other stakeholders embark on reforms to improve
credit worthiness and bankability of urban infrastructure projects. Tne PMDO would use efficient transaction

structures built on robust risk management processes. Disbursements of Rs2.86 crore has been made under
. the above facility by the company.

India Infrastructure Finance Initiative

The company has entered into agreement with the Infrastructure Development Finance Company Ltd (IDFC)

and Citigroup Inc under the India Infrastructure Finance Initiative. The objective of the initiative is to

1S collectively facilitate large scale capital investments into infrastructure assets in India including roads,
aviation, ports, utilities and urban infrastructure. Under this, an equity fund of USD 2 billion is to be taised by

IDFC and Citigroup from international and domestic sources. IIFCL is to make a contribution of USD 25 million
to the equity of the fund.

The first fund under this initiative viz., The India Infrastructure Fund, has achieved financial close of USD 523.5
million and approval of the Reserve Bank of India is awaited for draw down.

MouU for deal flows

In order to create deal flows, opportunities for loan syndication and other related financial services, the
company has entered into Memorandum of Understanding with banks/institutions. During the year, 11 MoU
were signed by the company including with Macquarie BankLtd, (MBL) Australia and Deutsche Bank AG.
Resource Mobilization

puring the year, the company took various initiatives aimed at resource mobilization. A long term loan of
Rs1000 crore was raised from the Life insurance Corporation of India, while aloan of Rs1500 crore with tenure
of 15 years was availed from the National small Savings Fund (NSSF). The company undertook market

borrowing by way of issuance of long term bonds amounting to Rs200 crore. A long term loan of USD 500
million was sanctioned by the Asian Development Bank under its india Infrastructure Project Financing

Facility. Similar loan proposals from World Bank and KfW are in process. Reserve Bank of India has accorded
approval to the company to raise External Commercial Borrowings of JPY equivalent of USD 500 million.
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Adoption of Environmental and Social Safeguards

To achieve fine balance in developmental imperatives and environmental and social well-being, IIFCL along
with the Developmental Partners (DPs) like Asian Development Bank have drafted an Environmental and
Social safeguard Framework (ESSF) for infrastructure projects. The proposed draft ESSF framework
emphasizes IIFCL's sensitivity and concern to environmental and social issues, commitment towards
compliance, and responsiveness towards environmental and social requirements of its developmental

partners. The draft ESSF will be finalized in consultation with the concerned stakeholders, banks, Gol, lIFCL
and other lending institutions.

Gol Contribution to equity capital

During the year, Government of India contributed Rs700 crore towards the equity capital of the company,
thereby raising the total to Rs800 crore.

Rating of the company

The Company's domestic borrowing programme has been rated by three rating agencies of the country viz.,
CRISIL, ICRA and Fitch Ratings and they have assigned "AAA (S0)/Stable” (indicating high degree of safety) &
“LAAA (SO)" ratings (indicating highest credit quality) respectively. Standard & Poor has awarded “BBB -* rating

to the Company which is at par with the sovereign rating of India. The outlook in respect of such rating is
considered as “Stable".

Visit to Hanover, Germany

3i Group Infrastructure with which IIFCL has signed MoU, had invited the Chairman & Managing Director to
address the participants of Public Infrastructure Conference 2008 at Hanover, Germany. The Conference was
aknowledge-sharing and networking platform for the management, financing, operation and maintenance
of public infrastructure wherein over 1500 persons participated. The participation at the Conference
helped to show case India as a emerging economy with significant growth potential and the large
investment requirements in infrastructure sector. The liberal FDI policy of Government of India in the
infrastructure sector was also emphasised during the presentation, which attracted the:wide attention of
the participants from the German policy makers, corporate houses and financial institutions.

Participation in other forums

During the year, officials of the company participated in various conferences and seminars relating to
infrastructure development and issues thereof. This has helped showcase the achievements of the company
and also highlight various aspects r€lating to financing of infrastructure in the country.

Financial highlights

I would now like to turn to the financial highlights of the company during 2007-08. Total income during the
year amounted to Rs120.20 crore compared to Rs40.23 crore earned during FY 2006-07, registering a growth
of 199%. Profit Before Tax recorded a growth of 260% to touch Rs33.76 crore from Rs9.38 crore during FY
2006-07. The company has adopted prudential norms prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India for banks and
accordingly, provision for “Standard" assets has been made at 0.40%. With NIL NPAs, provision for standard
assets increased from Rs0.57 crore at the end of March 2007 to Rs6.76 crore at the end of March 2008. Further,
“Infrastructure Reserve" increased from Rs3.13 crore at the end of March 2007 to Rs7.65 crore at the end of

March 2008. Profit After Tax registered a growth of 306% to touch Rs14.10 crore from Rs3.47 crore at the end
of March 2007.

Establishing foreign presence

Pursuant to the announcement in the Union Budget 2007-08 for setting up an off-shore subsidiary of the
company, the establishment of a wholly owned subsidiary was taken up for implementation by IFCL and the
IIFC (UK} Ltd has been set up at London. IIFC (UK Ltd has been incorporated on Februrary 7, 2008 and
commenced operations on April 10, 2008. The company will borrow funds from the Reserve Bank of Indiaand
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provide foreign currency loans to Indian infrastructure companies for meeting their capital expenditure for
importsolely outside India.

Expanding role of liFCL

¥ As the economy continues its strong growth, the demand for infrastructure will further accelerate and the
financing needs thereof will also go up. IIFCL has already carved aniche foritself in financing infrastructure in
the country and expects to consolidate its position further by actively partnering with other financial
intermediaries in promotion and development of infrastructure assets in the country.
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NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE THIRD ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF INDIA INFRASTRUCTURE
FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON MONDAY THE 4TH AUGUST, 2008 AT 04.00 P.M. AT THE REGISTERED
OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT 1 201-1207, NAURANG HOUSE, 21, KASTURBA GANDHI MARG, NEW DELHI.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1 Toreceive, consider and adopt the Third Audited Balance Sheet as on 31.03.2008 and the Profit and Loss Account
for the year ended 31.03.2008 together with the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors Thereon.

2 GuptaNanda &Co., Chartered Accountants, who were appointed by the Ogfice of Comptroller & Auditor General of

India as Statutory Auditors of IIFCL for the financial year 2007-08 vacate office at the ensuing AGM. The Office of the
Comptroller and Auditor General has not yet proposed another auditor for the ensuing Financial Year 2008-20009.
On receipt of the said letter from the CAG, the auditor shall be deemed appointed, vide consent granted by the

shareholders at this AGM; at remuneration to be decided by the Chairman, in consultation with the Board of
Directors of the Company.

By Order of the Board of Directors
FOR INDIA INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Place: New Delhi

S. S KOHLI
Date: 11.07.2008

CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR

REGISTERED OFFICE

1201-1207, 12th Floor, Naurang House,
21, Kasturba Gandhi Marg,

New Delhi-110001

NOTES: -

1 A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of
himself/ herself and the proxy need not be amember of the Company.

2)  Proxyinorderto be effective must be received by the Company not less than 48 hours before the meeting.
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Directors'

To

The Members

The Directors of India Infrastructure Finance Company Ltd have great pleasure in presenting the Third
Annual Report with the Audited statements of accounts along with the comments of the Auditors of the
companyand The Comptroller and Auditor General of India for the financial year ended 31st March 2008.
VISION

‘Povide innovative financing solutions to promote and develop world class infrastructure in india’
MISSION

‘To adopt best practices in financing infrastructure and develop core competencies in facilitating
infrastructure development. Develop a team of highly engaged employees to deliver services in a
professional manner and to the satisfaction of allstakeholders".

OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL RESULTS

The financialresults of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2008 are as follows:

RS. crore
em 31032007 31.03.2008
Totalincome 4023 42020
Total Expenses 30.86 86.67
Profit Before Tax 9.38 33.76
Less :Provision for Tax 2.21 8.95
Less: Provision for standard assets 0.57 6.19
Less: Provision for infrastructure reserye 313 4.52
Profit After Tax carried forward to balance sheet 3.47 14.10
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The company earned a Profit After Tax of Rs.14.10 crore compared to Rs.3.47 crore in the previous year,
registering a growth of 306%. Total income increased from Rs.40.23 crore at the end of March 2007 to
Rs.120.20 crore at the end of March 2008, recording a growth of 199%. Income from loans amounted to
Rs.57.66 crore at the end of March 2008. Total expenses at the of March 2008 was Rs.86.67 crore.

Profit Before Tax at the end of March 2008 was Rs. 33.76 crore compared to Rs.9.38 crore at the end of March
2007, growing by 260%.

The company has adopted the prudential norms prescribed by Reserve Bank of India for banks with regard
to asset classification and provisioning. All the assets of the company at the end of March 2008 were in the
“Standard" category. Keeping with the prudential policy, the company has been making provision @ 0.40%
onstandard assets. The provision for standard assets accordingly incsreased from Rs.0.57 crore at the end of
March 2007 to Rs.6.76 crore at the end of March 2008. Further, the company has created Infrastructure
Reserve which went up fromRs. 3.13 crore to Rs.7.65 crore during the above period.

SECTOR-WISE SANCTIONS

The Company has sanctioned an amount of Rs.8559 crore to 32 projects, with project cost of Rs.62,472 crore
in Financial year 2007-08.

The Sector wise status is detailed below:-

Sector No of projects Loan Project cost
approved Rs. crore
Rs. crore
Road 19 1981 10696
Power 9 5334 41270
Airport 1 1000 8890
Seaport 230 1546
Urban Infrastructure 1 14 70
Total 32 8559 62,472
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RESOURCES

During 2007-08 the paid-up capital of the company increased from Rs. 100 crore to Rs. 800 crore with
Government of India's contribution. The company raised Rs. 200 crore by way of market borrowing
through bonds of 15 year maturity. Further the company availed long-term loan of Rs. 1000 crore ,
from the Life Insurance Corporation of Indiaand Rs. 1500 crore from the National Small Savings Fund.
Tomeetshort-term requirements, the company raised loans from banks to a tune of Rs. 1000 crore.

The Company has got approval of the Reserve Bank of India for raising of external commercial

barrowings (ECB's) of USD 500 million. Further the company has gotasanction of USS 500 million loan

from the Asian Development Bank. The proposals of the Company for long term loans from World

Bank and Kfw are under process.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Infrastructure projects involved variety of risks and need to be identified and mitigated. Towards \
this end, the company took a major step during the vear to appoint consultant with the task of

evolving a framework for risk assessment. uUnder this framework credit, market and operational risks

would be addressed.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Company has well laid out internal control system by way of internal audit on aconcurrent basis.
The Auditor'sreportis placed before the Audit Committee of the Board at regularintervals.

OPERATIONAL MANUAL

Towards bringing in more operational efficiency, the Company has taken up the task of evolving a

comprehensive operational manual with the help of outside consultants. The operational manual
willbeimplemented afteritis received from the consultants.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

The company believes that its employees are its most valuable assets. Towards this end, the HR
policy of the company is aimed at nurturing the full potential of the employees and also equip them
with the required skill sets. Training of staff has been given adequate importance by the Company
and keeping with this, a training inventory has been created. Besides training of officers within the
country, the company has been sponsoring them for training abroad. During the year, four officers
of the company were senton training abroad. As part of HR policy, the Company implemented the
Officers Service Regulations during the year. The policy of absorption of officers who are on
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deputation is under process.

Towards preparing a performance linked incentives scheme for staff, the Company has appointed
consultants to evolve the framework covering the key performance areas.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Although overall economic growth is showing signs of maoderation, the growth rate is expected to
remain in the range of 8% . Accordingly, the performance of the infrastructure sector during the
year 2008-09 is expected to post moderate growth. Keeping with this, the company has planned its
loan sanctions. Dishursements are expected to pick, particularly, in respect of projects which are
under implementation. The company would be raising matching resources during the year and the
loans from multinational institutions are expected to become available during the year.

The company has already sighed Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with various banks and

institutions. The company would be availing opportunities for financing of fresh proposals from
such arrangements.

In fulfilment of the announcement made in the Union Budget 2007-08, the company has
established its wholly owned offshore subsidiary at London, which commenced operations on
10th April 2008. IIFC (UK) Ltd would be meeting the foreign currency loan requirements of Indian
infrastructure sector. Efforts will be made to maximize the available business opportunities in this
respect.

DIVIDEND

The company earned a Profit After Tax of Rs.14.10 crore during the year. Taking into the need to
strengthen the fundamentals of the company, the management has decided that it would be

prudent to plough back the profits of the company and accordingly, the company has not declared
any dividend.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the company:

No Name Designation Category Remarks

1 shri S S Kohli Chairman & Whole time
Managing Director Director

2 ShriRRShah Member - Secretary Director Since Retired
Planning Commission w.e.f 10.1.2008

3 shriVinod Rai Secretary Director Since Retired
(Financial Sector) w.e.f 6.1.2008
Ministry of Finance

4  Dr Subas Pani Secretary Director

Planning Commission

5  Shri Arun Ramanathan Secretary (Financial Sectaor) Director
Ministry of Finance

6. Prof G Raghuram Professor Director
indian Institute of
Management, Anmedabad

7. shri N Balasubramanian Ex-chairman & Director
Managing Director SIDBI

Shri Vinod Rai, Secretary (FS), Ministry of Finance, Government of India, resigned w.e.f. 6.1.2008 from the office
of Director of IFCL, upon his appointmentas Comptroller & Auditor General of In dia by Government of india. The
Board wishes to place on record itssincere appreciation of hisvaluable contribution to the company.

Shri R.R. Shah, Member Secretary, Planning Commission ceased to be Director w.e.f. 10.1.2008 upon
appointment of Dr Subas Pani, Secretary Planning Commission on the Board of Directors of IIFCL in place of

shri RR Shah by the Central Government. The Board wishes to place on record its sincere appreciation of his
contribution to the company.
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IIFCL

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement under section-217 (2AA) of the Company Act-1956 with respect to a Director's
Responsibility Statement.

Itis hereby confirmed:-

(@ That in the preparation of Annual Accounts for the Financial Year ended 31.03.2008 the applicable

Accounting Standard had been followed along with the proper explanation relating to material
departure.

(b) That the Directors had adopted such Accounting Policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give true and fair view of the state

of affairs of the company at the ended of the Financial year and of the profit or loss of the company for
the year under review.

(€ That the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of the adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding the
assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and otherirregularities.

(d) Thatthe Directors had prepared the accounts for the Financial Year ended 31-03-2008 on going concern
basis.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The company is committed to adopting the best practices in corporate governance which is guided by the
principles of conducting the business in a responsible, transparent and ethical manner so as to protect the
interest of all stakeholders. In line with this, the company has put in place a system of internal controls with
appropriate format for reporting. The company has a three tier system of audit viz,, internal audit, statutory
auditand supplementary audit by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

Although itis not mandatory, the company on its own, has adopted prudential accounting norms relatingto
asset Classificiation and provisioning. A framework for risk assessment is being putin place to address credit,
market and operational risks. An Operational Manual clearly delineating the procedures to be adopted and
the information to be place to the top managementis under preparation.

Regular reports on the performance of the company are placed to the Board of Directors.
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BOARD MEETINGS DURING THE YEAR

The Board of Directors of the company provides leadership and strategic direction and bring forth their
objective judgement, independence of management and exercises control over the company, while
ensuring accountability to stakeholders.

During the year under review, 7 meetings of the Board were held on 26th April, 2007, 10th July, 2007, 29th
August, 2007, 2nd November, 2007, 20th December, 2007, 22nd February, 2008 and on 31st March 2008.

Audit Committee of the Board

The Board of Directors has constituted an Audit Committee of the following Directors under Section 292(A)
of the Companies Act, 1956.

No | Designation/Directors Name of Director
1 Secretary (Financial Sector), Shri Arun Ramanathan- Chairman of the
Ministry of Finance committee
2 | chairman & Managing Director Shri $S Kohli - Member
3 | professor, IIM, Anmedabad | Prof G Raghuram- Member
DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposit under Section 58A of the
Ccompanies Act, 1956, read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 1975.

CONSERVATION ENERGY

The Company does not belong to the Category of power intensive industries and hence consumption of
power is not significant but adequate measures have been taken to conserve energy as far as possible.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

The Company is engaged in providing financial assistance to identified projects to aid the development of
economy and does not involve any technology absorption.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

information in accordance with Section 217(1) (e) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with Companies
(Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors), Rules, 1988:

(Rs. in lakhs)
31.03.2008 31.03.2007
Total Foreign exchange used : 26.76 1.14
Total Foreign exchange earned : 27.21 NIL
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Allthe employees, except 3, are taken on deputation from various Public Sector Banks/Financial Institutions.
While the Officers' Service Regulations have been implemented, the process of absorption of the staff is

under process. The company plans to develop a full fledged cadre of professionals to manage the
increasingly complex business of financinginfrastructure development,

The Company had no employees during the Year under review whose particulars are required to be given

under Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars of Employees
Rules 1975).

BOND TRUSTEE

The Company's 8.70% IIFCL 2016 bonds are provisionally listed with BSE. Further, the company has issued
8.82% IIFCL 2022 bonds which are provisionally listed with BSE and the same would getconfirmed onissuance
of Golguarantee. The Company, in line with the requirement of SEBI, appginted the following Trustees:

IL&FS Trust Company Ltd. Bond Series _
ThelL & FSFinancial Centre, 8.70% (IIFCL 2016 Bond
Plot C-22, G-Block, Series|)

Bandra-KurlaComplex,
Bandra(gEast), Mumbai-400 051

IDBI Trusteeship Services Ltd Bond Series
Asian Building 8.82% (IIFCI 2022 Bond
17 R Kamani Marg (Series |2007-08)

Ballard Estate
Mumbai 400001

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s Gupta Nanda & Co. Chartered Accountants, were appointed by the Office of Comptroller & Auditor
General of India as Statutory Auditors of IIFCL for the financial year 2007-08.

COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY AUDITORS/COMPTROLLER & AU DITOR GENERAL OF INDIA ON ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

The audited statement of accounts alongwith the report of auditors is appended with comments of the
Statutory Auditors and Comptroller & Auditor General of India under Sector 619(4) of the Companies Act,
1956, asan annexure to this Report.

OFFICIAL LANGUAGE

Efforts were made during the year towards encouraging use of Hindi in official transactions as also to ensure
compliance of provisions of Official Language Act.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board of Directors wishes to place on record their appreciation of dedication, hard work and the efforts
of the employees of the company. The Directors are thankful to all the stakeholders including the Central
Covernment, State Governments, Banks, Financial Institutions, Employees, Customers and Shareholders for

their continued support and cooperation. The Board is also thankful to the Auditors of the Company, the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India for their valuable guidance and advice.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FOR INDIA INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE COMPANY LTD.

Place : New Delhi

S. S. KOHLI
Date : 11.07.2008

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR
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AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF INDIA INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

1.

We have audited the attached Balance sheet of India Infrastructure Finance Company Limited as at 31st March,
2008 and also the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date annexed

thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
expressan opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles

used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statements
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 and the Companies (Auditor's Report) (Amendment)
Order, 2004 issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of Section 227 of the Companies
Act, 1956, we enclose in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs4and 5 of the said order.

Further, to our comments in the 'Annexure' referred to above, we report that:

(@) Some of the balances shown under loans, advances and other debits/ credits in so far as these have

since not been confirmed, realized, discharged or adjusted are subject to reconciliation. (Refer Iltem
No. B(26) relating to Notes to the accounts of Schedule XIX).

The effect of item no. (a) above on the Company's accounts is not ascertainable for the reasons explained in
therespective notes.

Further to above, we reportthat:

(@ We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears
from our examination of those books.

() The Balance Sheet, the Profit and_Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in
agreementwith the books of accounts.

()

in our opinion, the Balancegheet, the profit and loss account and the cash flow statement dealt with by this
report subject to item No. A(10) of schedule XIX relating to accounting policies and item No. B(15) of
schedule XIX relating to notes to the account, comply with the accounting standards referred to in sub-
section (3C) of Section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956.

The effect of item no. A(10) & B(15) refer above on the Company'saccounts is not ascertainable for the reasons
explainedin therespective notes.

(e} The requirements of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956 relating to

disqualification of directors are not applicable to the Company, being a Government company, in terms of
Notification No. G.S.R.829(E), dated 21.10.2003 issued by Ministry of Finance, Department of Company Affairs.

(f)  The Company is not required to make any payment of Cess, as no notification has been issued by the Central

Government specifying the rate for levying of cess under Section 441A of the Companies Act, 1956 till 31st of
March, 2008.

Subject to our observations as stated in para 4(a) & 5(d) above, In our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanation given to us, the said accounts read with the Accounting Policies
and Notes thereon in Schedule No. XIX, give the information reguired by the Companies Act, 1956 in the

manner so required, and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
acceptedinIndia:
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(@ inthe case of Balance Sheet of the state of affairs of the Company asat March 31st, 2008.

(b) inthecase of the Profit and Loss account, of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date; and

() inthecaseof the cash flow statement, of the cash flows of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Place: N. Delhi

For Gupta Nanda & Co.
Dated: 02.05.08

(Chartered Accountants)

(Sanjive Nanda)
Partner
M.No.: 87108
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INDIA INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Referred toin paragraph 3 of ourauditreport of even date:

)

(i)

@

(b)

)

(i (@

(iv)

(W]

i)

(vii)

(viii)

(iX)

()

(xi)

(e

(@

(b)

(c)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

As explained to us the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals.
No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company did not dispose off a substantial part of fixed assets during the year.

The nature of the Company does not require it to hold inventories and as such clause 4(ii) of the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2003('Order’) is not applicable.

The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties covered in
the register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. As the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured, to parties listed in the registers maintained under Section 301 of the Companies
Act, 1956, the provision of clause 4(iii) (b), () and (d) of the Order are not applicable to the company.

The Company has not taken any loans, secured or unsecured from companies, firms or other parties covered
in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. As the Company has not taken any
loans, secured or unsecured, from parties listed in the registers maintained under Section 301 of the
Companies Act, 1956, the provision of clause 4(iii) (f) and (g) of the Order are not applicable to the company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, there are adequate internal
control procedures commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business, for the
purchase of fixed assets and for sale of services. Further, during the course of our audit we have neither come

across nor have we been informed of any significant continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in the
internal control system.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanation given to us, there
are no contracts or arrangements the particulars of which need to be entered in the register maintained in
pursuance of Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 and paragraph (v) (b) of the order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of the Rule 2(b) of the
Companies (Acceptance of DenosiEs; Rules1975.

In our opinion, the internal,aumt functions carried out during the year by an external agency appointed by
the Management have been commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed
maintenance of costrecords under clause (d) of sub-section (1) of Section 209 of the Companies Act, 1956.

According to the information and explanation given to usand on the basis of our examination of the books of
account, the company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including

Provident Fund, Fringe Benefit Tax, Income-tax, Service-Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues as
applicable with the appropriate authorities.

According to information and explanation given to us, no undisputed material amounts in respect of
Provident fund, Income Tax, Fringe Benefit Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the

company was in arrears as of March 31, 2008 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues outstanding on account of
Income Tax/ Fringe Benefit Tax/Service Tax/Cess that have not been deposited on account of disputes:

The company has not any accumulated losses as on 31st March, 2008. The Company has not incurred cash losses
forthe financial year ended 31st of March, 2008 and in the immediately preceding financial year.

According to the information and explanation given to us, and on the basis of our examination of the books of

account, the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institution or bank or
debenture holders
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According to the information and explanation given to us, and on the basis of our examination of the books of
account, the company has not granted loans and advances on the basis of prime security by way of pledge of
shares, debentures and other securities. Accordingly, clause 4(xii) of the Orderis notapplicable.

The company is not a chit fund, nidhi, mutual benefitora society. Accordingly, clause 4(xiii) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the books of
accountgenerally, proper records have been maintained of the transactions and contracts and timely entries

have been made therein in respect of the securities, debentures and other investments dealt with or traded
by the company.

Thesecurities, debentures and other securities have been held by the Company, in its own name excepttothe
extent of the exemption, if any, granted under Section 49 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the company has not given any
guarantees for loans taken by others from bank or financial institutions;

To the best of our knowledae and belief and according to the information and explanation given to us, in our

opinion, term loans availed by the Company were, prima facie, applied by the Company during the year for
the purpose for which the loans were obtained, other than temporary deployment pending application.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on the overall examination of the Balance

Sheet of the Company, we report that funds raised on short term basis have, prima facia, not been used for
long-term investment.

The company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties and companies covered in the
register maintained under Section 301 of the CompaniesAct, 1956 during the vear.

As all debentures and bonds issued are guaranteed by Govt. of India but are unsecured, creation of security or
charge does not arise.

The company has not raised any money by publicissues during the year.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanation given to us, no
fraud on or by the company was noticed or reported during the year.

For Gupta Nanda & Co.
(Chartered Accountants)

{Sanjive Nanda)
Partner
M.No.: 87108
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Balance Sheet
AS on 31st March 2008

(Rs.)
DESCRIPTION Schedule As on 31st As on 31st
No. March,2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)
I SOURCES OF FUNDS
(1) Shareholder's Funds
(@) Share Capital I 3,000,000,000.00 1,000,000,000.00
(b) Reserve and Surplus Il 321,809,437.74 74,179,954.94
(c) Share Application Money (Pending Allotment) 5,000,000,000.00
(2) Loan Funds
(@ Secured Loans i - 696,109,997.30
(b) Unsecured Loans v 34,976,210,186.00 6,073,481,683.00
(3) Defferred tax liability (Net of Asset) v 33,877,282.68

TOTAL

] APPLICATIONS OF FUNDS
(1) Fixed Assets Vi
(a) Gross Block
Less : Depreciation

Net Block
(b) Capital Work -in-Proaress
(2) Investments Vil
(3) Infrastructure Loans Vil
(4) Current Assets, Loans & Advances 1X

(@ Cash & Bank Balance
(b) Other Current Assets
(C) Loans & Advance

Less: Current Liabilities and Provisions X
(@ Current Liabilities
(b} Provisions -
-
(5) Net Current Assets
(6) Miscellaneous Expenditure to the extent Xl
not written off or adjusted

Significant Accounting Policies and
Notes to the Accounts XIX
TOTAL

5,721,583.01

43,331,896,906.42

7,849,493,218.25

4,531,106.98 3,778,549.98

1,854,767.26 997,197.19

2,676,339.72 2,781,352.79
370,825.00

11,441,317,120.58
16,906,379,442.57

15,170,383,953.23
155,066,580.49
170,899,191.97

1,045,241,710.15
1,424,603,571.54

5,462,112,493.65
141,445,712.05
55,277,638.22

15,496,349,725.69

468,834,696.82
74,261,654.25

5,658,835,843.92

273,104,411.81
26,305,533.27

543,096,351.07
14,953,253,374.62
27,899,803.93

299,409,945.08
5,359,425,898.84
17.440,684.93

45,331,896,906.42

7,849,493,218.25

Signed in terms of our report of even date

For Gupta Nanda & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Sanjive Nanda
(Partner)
Membership No.87108

S.S. Kohli

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 02.05.2008
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Profit and Loss Account
For the Year Ended on 31st March 2008
- - - e - - - ~ (Rs)
Schedule For the year For the year
DESCRIPTION No. ended 31st ended 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)
| INCOME
Income from Operations X 1,118,921,299.77 363,014,709.60
Other Income X 82,469,107.85 38,606,987.12
Add: Deferred income on account of
Depreciation Charged on Fixed assets acquired
out of Government Grant 499,601.64 638,737.44
TOTAL INCOME (A) 1.20‘ﬁ,890,009.26 402,260,434.16
Il EXPENDITURE
Cost of Borrowings Xiv 806,720,822.85 286,582,397.60
Payments to and provisions for employees XV 11,852,464.92 7,564,624.76
Establishment and other Expenses XVI 19,549,047.59 13,167,625.68

Provision for contigencies

5,008,129.00 -

Provision for decline in value of investments 22,745,000.00 200,000.00

Depreciation Vi 857,570.07 994,384.73

TOTAL EXPENDITURE (B) 866,733,034.43 308,509,032.77

Il PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 335,156,974.83 93,751,401.39
IV ADD : PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS XVl 2,431,918.73

V  PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Less(-/Add(+) : Provision for taxes

337,588,893.56

93,751,401.39

- Current Year :-

Tax (61,473,571.00) (15,807,850.00)

Interest (254,450.00) %

-Earlier Year :-

Tax 862,000.00 (128,759.00)

Lesst-l/Add(+) : Deferred Tax Liability(-}/Asset(+) (28,155,699.67) (5,886,504.01)

Lesst-)/Add(+) : Provision for Fringe benefit tax (438,088.45) (230,979.00
VI  Profit After Tax Available For Appropriations Xvill 248,129,084.44 71,697,309.38
VIl Basic & Diluted Earning per Share of Rs.10/- each 0.65 0.51

Amount in Rs. (Refer note no. B(8) of schedule -XIX)

VIl Significant Accounting Policies and
Notes to the Accounts XIX

Signed in terms of our report of even date

For Gupta Nanda & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Sanjive Nanda $.5. Kohli

(Partner) (Chairman and Managing Directaor)

Membership No.87108

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 02.05.2008

For India Infrastructure Finance Company Ltd.

Dr. Subas Pani

(Director)
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

(Rs.)
As on 31st As on 31st
March,2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)
SCHEDULE - |
SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED CAPITAL
1,000,000,000 equity shares (Previous year 1,000,000,000) 10,000,000,000.00 10,000,000,000.00
of Rs. 10/- each
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP CAPITAL
300,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 3,000,000,000.00 1,000,000,000.00
(Previous year 100,000,000 Equity Shares of 10 each)
TOTAL 3,000,000,000.00 1,000,000,000.00
-
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(Rs.)
Description Opening Balance Additions/ Deductions/ Closing Balance

as on 01.04.2007 Adjustments Adjustments as on 31.03.2008
during the year during the year

SCHEDULE - Il
RESERVES & SURPLUS

Provision for Standard Assets

36(1) (viia) (c) of Income Tax Act,1961 5,698,414.29 61,927,103.48 67,625,517.77
Special Infrastructure Reserve -

created u/s 36(1) (viii) —

of Income Tax Act, 1961 31,308,867.77 45,214,453.33 = 76,523,321.10
Capital Reserve for Fixed Assets 1,851,258.56 - 499,601.64 1,351,656.92
Profit and Loss Account 35,321,414.32 140,987,527.63 - 176,308,941.95
Total 74,179,954.94 248,129,084.44 499,601.64 321,809,437.74
Previous Year 3,121,383.00 73,686,570.88 2,627,998.94 74,179,954.94
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(Rs.)

As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)
SCHEDULE - 1l
SECURED LOANS
(A)  Overdraft against FDR of Dena Bank 695,406,648.30
(B) Interest accrued & due on Secured Loans - 703,349.00

TOTAL
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(Rs.)
As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)
SCHEDULE - IV
UNSECURED LOANS - RUPEES
(R) BONDS
(@) Long Term Loans
il Guaranteed by Government of India & redeemable at Par i
Non Convertible 8.70% Bonds - Redemption on 02/09/2016 - 5,000,000,000.00 5,000,000,000.00
5000 Bonds of Face Value Rs 10 Lakhs each
(Previous Year 5000 bonds of face value of Rs.10Lakhs each)
(il Guaranteed by Government of India & redeemable at Par 2,000,000,000.00 -
Non Convertible 8.82% Bonds - Redemption on 19.12.2022
2000 Bonds of Face Value Rs 10 Lakhs each (Previous Year NIL)
TOTAL A 7,000,000,000.00 5,000,000,000.00
(B} OTHER BORROWINGS
(a) Long Term
8 ) Loans - LIC of Indial Guaranteed by Govt. of India) 10,000,000,000.00
: i Loan -NSSF 15,000,000,000.00 ;
lii) Loans State bank of Travancore 2,437,911.00 1,050,000,000.00
' () Short Term
#h Loan Bank Of India 2,973,772,275.00 -
Interest accrued and due on Loans - 23,481,683.00
TOTALB 27,976,210,186.00 1,073%,481,683.00
—
: TOTAL (A +B) 34,976,210,186.00 6,073,481,683.00

Notes to schedule - IV

Long Term Loans due for repayment within one year are Rs 24,37,911.00 (previous year NIL )
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As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)
SCHEDULE - Vv
DEFFERED TAX ASSETS / LIABILITY( Net of Assets)
Deffered tax Liability
(@ Onaccount of Depreciation 102,215.72
(b)Y On account of Stamp Duty 7,764,790.12 5,928,088.88
(C)} On account of Infrastructure Reserve Created u/sec
36(1)viil) of Income Tax Act,1961 26,010,276.84
Net Deffered Tax liability 33,877,282.68 5,928,088.88
Deffered tax Assets
(@ On Account of Depreciation - 206,505.87
Net Deffered Tax Assets » 206,505.87
Net Deffered Tax Liability 353,877,282.68 5,721,583.01
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(Rs.)

As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)
SCHEDULE - ViI
INVESTMENTS
(A) WITH ASSISTED UNITS
(@ Investment in UK Subsidiary 41.00
(B) OTHER INVESTMENTS -
LONG TERM INVESTMENT
Quoted Investment
(a) Power Finance Corporation 300,000,000.00 300,000,000.00
() 8.85% CAN BANK 80,000,000.00 80,000,000.00
(c) 8.85% SBI 2021 200,000,000.00 200,000,000.00
(d) 7.99% GOI 2017 361,760,000.00 -
(e) 8.33% GOl 2036 160,590,000.00 252,275,000.00
(f)  Preacquisition period Interest paid 3,025,763.89 3,510,083.33
(@) Premium paid on Bank Securities 487,418.82 535,446.82

SHORT TERM INVESTMENT
Quoted Investment
(@ UTI- Liguid
unquoted Investment
{a) Investment in Treasury bills
(b) Certificate of Deposit

(c) Dodballpur Integrated Textile park [PMDQI]
(d) Pochampally Handloom Park Pvt. Ltd. [PMDO]

Sub Total

-

LESS: Provision for diminution in the value of Investments

TOTAL
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6,401,250,935.96

3,940,522,400.00
7,655,390.91
8,770,170.00

19,373,180.00
189,748,000.00

11,464,062,120.58

22,745,000.00

1,045,441,710.15

200,000.00

11,441,317,120.58

1,045,241,710.15
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(Rs.)

As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)

SCHEDULE - VIl
INFRASTRUCTURE LOANS ( ASSETS)

(A) ASSISTED CONCERNS

(B) OTHER INSTITUTIONS 16,906,379,442.57 1,424,603,571.54

TOTAL 16,906,379,442.57 1,424,603,571.54
Notes: 1

The above amounts include interest and

other charges accrued but not due 43,885,258.00 438,447.00

Classification of Loans
(h  Secured by Future Cash Flows. Of Projects 16,906,379,442.57 1,424,603,571.54

(i) Guaranteed by Central /State Governments

(i) Against Prom. Notes & Usance Bills accepted /
Guaranteed by Banks

(iv) Unsecured

Notes:

Out of the above,

(il Considered good 16,906,379,442.57 1,424,603,571.54
(il Considered doubtful
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(RS.)

SCHEDULE - IX
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS & ADVANCES

1)

(2)

CURRENT ASSETS

(A) Cash and Bank Balance

(@ Cash in hand

(b) Balances with Scheduled Banks
(il -Current Accounts in India

(il - Fixed Deposit Accounts

{(B) Other Current Assets
(@ Interest accrued on T bills

(b) Interest accrued on Govt. Securities

(¢} Interest accrued on Certificate of Deposites

{d) Interest accured on Banks Securities
(e) Interest accured on Bonds

(fi  Interest accrued on FDRS

(@ Interest accrued on Flexi - SBT

() Other Current Assets

-

LOANS & ADVANCES
Advances Recoverable in Cash or in Kind OR

For Value to be Received (Unsecured Considered Good)
(@) Irregation and Water Resources Finance Corporation Ltd.

(b) Advance Tax paid
{c) Tax deducted at source
(d) Advance FBT
(e) Income Tax Refundable 2006-07
(f)  Misc. Expenses
(@) Advance for Business Plan
(h) PHRD grant receivable
(il Expenses Incurred on belhalf of subsidiary
(i Interest Recoverable on Swaps
TOTALI(B)
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As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)
1,201.09 8,391.00
90,382,752.14 22,104,102.65
15,080,000,000.00 5,440,000,000.00
15,170,383,953.23 5,462,112,493.65
= 609,012.62
7,300,798.10 1,457,083.33
79,975,920.78 7,575,775.04
21,589,151.84 11,812,931.53
7,369,808.03 7,369,808.03
37,585,354.27 112,305,941.02
- 35,459.00
1,245,547 .47 279,701.48
155,066,580.49 141,445,712.05

23,006,200.00 -
44,783,000.00 6,400,000.00
55,190,888.97 46,843,335.75
453,709.00 217,775.00
40,283,609.00
= 47,527.47
- 1,769,000.00
2,332,600.00
226,255.00 -
4,612,930.00 =

170,899,191.97 55,277,638.22




“““H

e
Y-
Py
@]
3

(Rs.)
As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)
SCHEDULE - X
CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
{A) CURRENT LIABILITIES
@ Interest accrued but not due on bonds and borrowings 411,520,547.36 246,604,985.81
(b) Unexpired income on swaps “ 46,181,982.00 26,273,913.00
(€ LC Commission received In Advance 1,496,142.00 -
(d) Interest Excess Recovered 2,736,823.61 .
(e) PF deducted on behalf of employees 10,161.20 -
(f)  Unclaimed Interest on 8.70% Bonds 156,078.00 &
(@) Provision for Loss on Interest Rate Swap 5,008,129.00 -
(hy Other Liabilities 1,724,833.65 225,513.00
TOTAL 468,834,696.82 273,104,411.81
(B) PROVISIONS
(@ Provision for Income Tax 61,728,021.00 15,807,850.00
(b) Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax 438,088.45 230,979.00
{c) Expenses 228,673.00 229,773.00
(d) Gratuity 474,747.58 235,151.45
(e) Leave Encashment 176,160.67 68,903.10
(f Covernment Gaurantee fees payable 3,815,963.55 9,732,876.72
(@ Stamp Duty Payable 7,400,000.00
TOTAL 74,261,654.25 26,305,533.27
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(Rs.)

As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)
SCHEDULE - XI
(A) MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE
(to the extent not written off or adjusted)
(@) Stamp duty on Bonds
Opening balance 17,440,684.93 -
Stamp duty paid on Bonds 7,400,000.00 18,500,000.00
Less : Written off during the period/year (1,996,348.00) (1,059,315.07)

(b) Stamp duty on Shares
Stamp duty paid on Shares
Less : Written off during the period/year

(c) Defferred Revenue Expenses

Defferred Revenue Expenses incurred during the year
Less : Written off during the period/year

Total
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22,844,336.93

17,440,684.93

2,000,000.00
(400,000.00)

1,600,000.00

4,161,100.00
(705,633.00)

3,455,467.00

27,899,803.93

17,440,684.93
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{Rs.)
As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)
SCHEDULE - XlI
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS
(@ On Lending Operations 576,569,965.24 18,724,540.80
(o) On Investment Operations
(i Interest (Gross) “161,494,363.27 79,319,320.79
(il Loss/Profit on Sale of Government Securities (482,850.89) 34,194,755.00
Less : Amortization of Premium Paid on HTM Securities (48,028.00) (22,833.18)
(il Dividend on Liquid Mutual Fund 45,328,852.31 .
{iv) Profit on Sale of CD 1,782,951.00 :
v} Profit on Sale of UTI Money Market Fund 860,860.14 -
Less : Loss on Sale of UTI Liquid Mutual Fund (618,750.00)
(c) Interest/discount on other deposits
(i) Interest on Bank FDR 334,033,936.70 230,798,926.19
TOTAL 1,118,921,299.77 363,014,709.60
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As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)
SCHEDULE - Xill
OTHER INCOME
(@  Other Income 50,331.00 20,000.00
{b) Short and Excess » 490.12
(C) Interest earned on Flexi Accounts 516,217.00 85,205.00
(d) Gain on Interest rate Swaps 3,611,563.00 743,105.00
(e) Upfront Fees 73,006,304.56 37,758,187.00
(f) Commission Recd. On L/C 4,484,119.79
(@ Liguadated Damages 13,033.00
(h) Commitment Charges 787,539.50

TOTAL
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82,469,107.85

38,606,987.12
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(Rs.)
As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)
SCHEDULE - Xiv
COST OF BORROWINGS
{A) Fixed
(Il Interest on Bonds & Debentures 531,629,919.00 246,604,985.81
(il Amortization of Borrowing cost " 1,996,348.00 1,059,315.07
Others
{(h  Interest on Bank Borrowings 103,591,291.00 29,185,220.00
(il Guarantee Fees to GOI 24,862,169.30 9,732,876.72
(iii} Interest on (NSSF) 3,698,630.00 -
(iv) Interest on loan from LIC 140,942,465.55 -
TOTAL 806,720,822.85 286,582,397.60
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(Rs.)

As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)
SCHEDULE - XV

PAYMENTS TO AND PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEES
(@) Salaries and Allowances 7,779,240.40 4,894,202.01
(p) Director's Remuneration 841,320.00 791,438.00
{c) Contribution to Provident, Pension and other Funds 670,898.10 264,470.57
(dy Reimbursements 1,782,966.42 1,190,719.18
{e) Contract Employees Payment 778,040.00 423,795.00
TOTAL 11,852,464.92 7,564,624.76
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(Rs.)
As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)
SCHEDULE - XVI
ESTABLISHMENT AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
Advertising Expenses 350,680.00 242,068.00
Auditors’ Remuneration 180,000.00 50,000.00
Bank Charges 88,738.00 24,450.30
Books and Newspaper - 53,627.10 38,369.91
Business promotion & development Expenses 1,140,232.00 781,349.00
Car Running and Maintenance Expenses 413,464.42 335,788.94
CCIL Charges 20,519.00 77,021.33
Directors' Sitting Fees 75,000.00 30,000.00
Directors Foreign Travelling 953,869.00 209,622.00
Directors Travelling 103,002.00 270,832.00
Electricity 545,451.60 279,020.00
Fees for Seminars 18,700.00 103,300.00
Filling fees 5,996.00 11,276.00
Foreign Exchange Fluctuations 126,105.42 -
Honorarium 15,000.00 31,500.00
Insurance 35,819.47 30,247.09
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 5 8,193.46
Miscellaneous Expenses 43,623.50 84,344.71
Miscellaneous Expenses Written off 1,105,633.00
Office Expenses 534,282.05 225,397.68
Other Tours, traveling & Conveyance Expenses 1,320,246.30 766,949.55
Postage & Telegram 116,113.00 54,816.00
Printing & Stationary 429,434.00 396,222.76
Professional Fees 2,217,935.00 3,987,483.60
Recruitment Expenses 954,318.50
Rent 7,421,093.00 3,005,520.00
Repairs and Maintenance 187,629.00 173,745.91
Short & Excess 351.92 4
Stamp duty Paid - 1.000,480.00
Subscription A/c 587,713.13 581,728.25
Telephone Expenses 504,471.18 367,899.19
TOTAL 19,549,047.59 13,167,625.68
Notes to schedule XVi
1 Auditors' Remuneration includes:
Audit Fees 100,000.00 50,000.00
Tax Audit Fees 25,000.00
Other Services 55,000.00 -
180,000.00 50,000.00
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(Rs.)

As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)
SCHEDULE - XVil
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS
Prior Period Income:
Interest & Other Charges 2,575,342.47
Miscellaneous Income 8,411.76
Sub Total 2,583,754.23 .
Prior Period Expenses:
Rent Reimbursement 71,642.50 -
Debenture Trustship Fees 43,570.00 -
Interest & other Charges
Miscellaneous Expenses 36,623.00 5
Sub Total 151,835.50 -
Prior Period Adjustment (Net) 2,431,918.73
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(Rs.)
As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)
SCHEDULE - XVill
APPROPRIATIONS
Transfer towards Reserve for Standard Assets 61,927,103.48 5,698,414.29
Ufs 36(1) (viia) (c) of Income Tax Act, 1961
Transfer to Special Reserve Created & manintained 45,214,453 33 31,308,867.77
U/s 36(1) (vii) of Income Tax Act, 1961
Balance Carried to Balance Sheet 140,987,527.63 34,690,027.32
TOTAL 248,129,084.44 71,697,309.38
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For The Year Ended on 31st March, 2008

(Rs.)

As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax & Extraordinary Iltems
Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Provision/write offs

Loss on sale of assets

Unexpired gain on Interest Swaps
Deferred Revenue Expenditure
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING
CAPITAL CHANGES

(Increase)/decrease in Current Assets
Increase/(decrease) in Current Liabilities
Cash Flow From Lending of Funds

Cash Flow From Investing activities
CASH GENERATION FROM OPERATIONS
Taxes paid

CASH FLOW BEFORE TRANSFER FROM
RESERVES

TRANSFER FROM CAPITAL RESERVE

OF FIXED ASSETS

NET CASH FROM OPERATIONS

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale of/ (Addition) to Investments
{including Application Money}

Purchase of/ Advance for Fixed Assets
(including Leased Assets) B
Sale proceed of Fixed Assets =

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issue of share capital

Loans borrowed (net of repayments)
Expenses incidental to finance

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET CHANGE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT (A +B +C)

Opening Cash and Cash Equivalent
Closing Cash and Cash Eqguivalent
Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalent

337,588,893.56

857,570.07
30,903,138.00
19,908,069.00
{4,161,100.00)

93,751,401.39

994,384.73
1,282,148.25
8,193.46
26,273,913.00

385,096,570.63

122,310,040.83

(41,982,325.97)
172,642,927.54
(15,481,775,871.03)
(10,418,868,438.43)

(143,035,777.52)

256,775,100.08

(1,424,603,571.54)
(1,045,464,543.33)

(25,584,887,157.26)

(2,234,018,751.48)

(102,436,925.22) (53,465,073.75)
(25,487,324,062.48) (2,287,483,825.23)
(499,601.64) (638,737.44)

(25,487,823,664.12)

(2,288,122,562.67)

|
|
|
l
n

1,123,382.00 3,285,187.98

= 2,000.00

(1,123,582.00) (3,283,187.98)
7,000,000,000.00 900,000,000.00
28,206,618,505.70 6,769,591,680.30
(9,400,000.00) (18,500,000.00)

35,197,218,505.70

7,651,091,680.30

9,708,271,459.58

5,559,685,929.65

5,462,112,493.65
15,170,383,953.23

102,426,564.00
5,462,112,493.65

9,708,271,459.58

5,559,685,929.65

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 02.05.2008 (Partner)

Note:Figures for previous year have been regrouped and rearrange to make them comparable wherever considered necessary.

signed in terms of our report of even date

For Gupta Nanda & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Sanjive Nanda

Membership No.87108

a4a Annual Report

-~ SNy

S.S. Kohli

(Chairman and Managing Director)

For India Infrastructure Finance Company Ltd.

Dr. Subas Pani
(Director)
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SCHEDULE XIX

Significant Accounting Policies And Notes To The Accounts

(A} SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1

The Financial accounts have been prepared on the going concern basis with accrual concept and in accordance
with the accounting policies and practices consistently followed unless otherwise stated.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

2(a) upfrant fee on loans is considered as income in cases where loan documents have been signed on allocated
amountand same isaccounted for on accrual basis.

2(b) Any gain or losses on the terminated swap are deferred and recognized over the shorter of the remaining
contractual life of the swap or the remaining life of the asset / liability.
2(c) Recoveries in borrower'saccounts are appropriated as per the loan agfeements.

2(d) Income from Dividend is accounted for in the period of declaration of dividend and credited to the
investmentaccount of the company.

2(e) Expenditure incurred on raising of funds including stamp duty on Bonds and credit rating fee etc. are

amortized proportionately over the period of its tenure. Stamp duty paid on issue of shares is amortized over
the period of five years.

2(f) Expenditure incurred on Professional fee etc. related to development of business plan ,H.R.plan I.T planetc

of the company which are vet to be implemented and benefits of such plan will available in future are
deferred and amortized over period of five years.

PROVISIONS/WRITE OFF AGAINST LOANS AND OTHER CREDIT FACLITIES

The company has followed prudential norms for asset classification and income recognition as per RBI circular

DBOD circular no. BP.BC.15/21.04.048/2006-07 dated 01.07.2006 which were approved by the Board of Directors of
the companyand are applicable with effect from 01 .04.2007.

INVESTMENTS

4(a) Incase of quoted Investments valued at lower of cost or market price atthe year end.

4(b) In case of investmentin Mutual Fund valued at lower of costor netassetvalue at the yearend.
4(c) Unquoted Long term Investments are carried at cost.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

51 The following transactions are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transactions.

5.1(@)  Expensesandincomein foreign currency and

5.2(b) The amounts borrowed and lent in foreign currency

5.2 The following balances are translated in indian currency at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of

closing of accounts
5.2@  Contingent Liability in respect of Letter of Credit issued in foreign currency
5.2(b) Loansgrantedinforeign currency
5.2(c)  Expensesonincomeaccrued butnotdue on foreign currency loans/borrowings

53 The actual/translation gain/loss (net) on foreign currency loan assets and liabilities are charged / credited

toprofitand loss account.
FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION
6(a) Fixed assetsare carried at cost less accumulated deprecation.

6(b) Fixed assets acquired out of government grant received for setup of the company are stated at historical Cost
of acquisition and stated at gross value without reducing governmentgrants.,
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7.

8.

9.

6(c) The addition to fixed assets are being capitalized on the basis of bills approved or estimated value of work
done as per contracts in cases where final bills are yet to be received /approved.

6(c) Depreciation of fixed assets of the company is provided at the rates and manner provided in schedule XIV of
the Companies Act 1956 following written down value method. Depreciation on individual assets having cost
below Rs.5000.00is charged at 100% as prescribed in the aforesaid schedule.

ACCOUNTING FOR GOVERNMENT GRANTS

7(a) Government grants related to non monetary assets for incorporation of company are set off against total

expenses incurred for incorporation in the earlier financial years and amount related to fixed assets is
transferred to Capital Reserve for the fixed assets purchased.

7(b) Government grants related to specific fixed assets are credited to Capital Reserve for Fixed Assets. These
grants are treated as deferred income and recognized in the profit and loss account over the useful life of
assets in the proportion which depreciation on related assets is charged.

PHRD GRANT FOR FACILITATING INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCING

The expenditure which are eligible under PHRD Grant for facilitating infrastructure financing vide letter dated

25.10.2006 of International Bank for Reconstruction and Development are not charged to Profit & Loss Accountand
are shown as receivables from PHRD.

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE

Expenses related to issue of Bonds are amortized over a maturity period of Bonds following 'Even Spread Method'

& following guidelines contained in Accounting Standard AS-16 “Borrowing Cost’ related to specific borrowing cost
& non specific borrowing cost.

10. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

since most of the Employees of the Company are on deputation, it is not possible for the company to calculate
actuarial valuation of leave encashment, gratuity and other retirement benefits payable to employees & therefore
company will not be able to follow Accounting Standard AS-15 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of
India. However, company has provided amount of retirement benefit payable to parent organization on
estimated basis for deputation employees. Further None of the employees other than on deputation is older than
five year in the company and hence company has not provide for any liability of retirement benefits for such
employees. Further in respect of defined contribution scheme like provident fund in respect of employees on
deputation respective contributions are remitted to parent organization and in respect of employees other than
deputation, company is yet to create approved recognized fund and hence employees and employer contribution
are shown under current liabilities and are invested in general.

11 DERIVATIVE ACCOUNTING

In respect of interest rate swaps entered by the company to hedge its borrowing cost which include INBMK swap
{Indian currency swap) and JPY COUPON swap (Foreign exchange derivative) on equal amount of under lying where
the marked to market loss on INBMK swap is provided and in JPY COUPON swap where the company has taken five
years forward cover and fully hedge its currency risk for five years the marked to market for the derivative

transaction has not been provided for in the accounts due to unigue nature of transaction entered by the
company.

12. DEFFERED TAX ACCOUNTING

Keeping in view remarks of CAG Auditors in respect of previous year Balance Sheet during the current year
company has changed its accounting policy to create provision of Deferred Tax Liability on Special Infrastructure

Reserve created under section 36(1)viii) of Income Tax Act 1961 and had this change not made the profit of the~
company would had been higher by Rs 2,60,10,276.84.
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(B) NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
1. Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of :

As on 31.03.08 31.03.07
(@) Estimated amount of contract 70.68 lacs NIL

(including lease contract) remaining to be
executed on capital account (net of advances)
(b) Interest tax/Sales tax/ Property tax/Trade tax pending NIL

NIL
in appeals based On judicial pronouncement
and/or Legal opinion and other matters.
(€) Guarantees issued - NIL NIL
(d) Claims not acknowledged as debts o NIL Rs.22,05,369/-
(e) Letter of Credit issued - Rs.3,40,03,76,774.91 NIL

(Issued in USD of 8,52,22,475.56 previous year NIL)

() The company has issued letters of comfort for disbursement of loans to Three borrowers amounting to
Rs. 3,40,03,76,774.91 (Previous year NILagainst which a sum of Rs. NIL (previous year NIL) has been disbursed
to NIL borrower.

The liability mentioned in point no. (a) above (Previous year: Nil), relates to contract entered by the company for
construction/renovation of new office premises taken on lease.

The liability mentioned in point no. (d) above (Previous vear), relates to penal interest charged by State Bank of
Travancore due to non-compliance of terms and conditions of sanction for which company had contested the
demand and same is waived in respect of current vear and previous year demand is charged to profit and loss
account.

The liability mentioned in point no. (e) above, relates to a Letter of Credit issued on behalf of three of the
borrowers of the company.

The company had availed loans of Rs.105 crores against sanctioned loan of Rs 200 crores from State Bank of
Travancore which is adjusted by the company after balance sheet date and as such company will not entered in to
guarantee agreement and accordingly company has reversed guarantee commission of Rs 25,75,342.47 provide
forin the financial year 2006-07 through prior period adjustmentaccount..

Additional information required asin Part Il of Schedule VI

(Rs.in lacs)
Year Ended 31.03.2008 31.03.2007
Expenditure in Foreign Currencies (Actual outgo):
- Interest on borrowings 19.79 Nil
- Foreign Traveling 6.97 1.14
Total 26.76 1.14
Earnings in Foreign Currencies:
- Interest 27.21 Nil
Total 27.21 Nil
Auditors remuneration:
-Statutory Audit Fee 1.00 0.50
Tax Audit Fee 0.25 NIL
Other mMmatters 0.55 NIL
TOTAL Auditors remuneration: 1.80 0.50
Managerial Remuneration:
- Salary and allowances 8.41 7.91
- Contribution to PF and other funds 0.00 0.00
Perquisites 0.71 0.47
- Sitting fee to Directors 0.75 0.30
TOTAL Managerial Remuneration: 9.87 8.68
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provision for Gratuity, leave encashment, Sick leave and leave travel concession are accounted for on estimated
basis and not on Actuarial basis as prescribed by A5-15.

The Company's main business is to provide finance for Infrastructure Projects and the company does not have

mare than one reportable segment in terms of Accounting Standard No. 17 issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountant of India.

Related Party Disclosures:

A) Managerial Remuneration and related party disclosure
Key managerial personnel of the company during the period:-
-5h.S.S. Kohli-Chairman & Managing Director
-Professor G.Raghuram -Director
il Paymenttoand on behalf of related parties
(@ DirectorsRemuneration and perquisites 9.12lac(Previous Year 8.38 Lacs)
(To shri S.S.Kohli)
(b) Sitting Feesto Directors 0.75lac (Previous Year 0.30 Lacs)
(To Professor G.Raghuram)
B) Investment insubsidiaries
Government of India has promoted the company for providing long term finance of more than ten year for
development of infrastructure projects in India. The company has established one foreign subsidiary in UK.

il The unaudited financial statements of subsidiary India Infrastructure Finance (UK) Limited on the basis of
information available and yet to be approved by Board Of Directors of subsidiary, are attached as required
under Sec 212 of The Companies Act, 1956 . The subsidiary was incorporated on 7th February 2008, and
operationsare yet to be started.

iil The detail of amount recoverable from subsidiary on account of expenditure incurred on behalf of the
subsidiary is given as under-.

Name of the subsidiary/eompany Amount as on 31.03.2008
IIFCL (UK) Limited Rs. 226255.00

Amount as on 31.03.2007
NIL

Provisions of Accounting Standard (AS-19)
(a) Financial Lease: NIL
(b) Operating Lease : The company has taken office premises under operating lease with varying lease periods.

In terms of Accounting Standard no. 20 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants, Earning per share (Basic &
Diluted) is worked out as follows :-

Particulars Amount Rs. Current year Amount Rs. Previous
In lacs *) In lacs year

Nominal Value of share (Rs.) 10/- 10/-
Number of Equity Share (No.) 30,00,00,000 10,00,00,000
(i) Net profit before provision for taxation

for earlier years, extraordinary items

and effect of change in accounting policy. 1376.93 0.63 348.18 0.51
(i) Provision for earlier years/ Prior period items 3294 0.02 -1.29 -0.001
(i) NetProfit(Total 1409.87 0.65 346.90 0.51
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(*)  EPSfor the current year has been calculated on weighted average number of equity shares of 21,83,56,164.38
(Previous Year 6,87,82,739.73)

The consolidated financial statements of India Infrastructure Finance company limited and un audited financial
statements its subsidiary India Infrastructure Finance Company (UK) Limited based on information available and
yet to be approved by board of directors of subsidiary are annexed as required under Accounting Standard 21 on
‘consolidated Financial Statements” as notified by companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

. Interms of Accounting Standard (AS-22) "Accounting for Taxes on Income", for the current period is determined on

the basis of taxable income and the tax credit computed in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act
1961 and based on expected outcome of assessments /appeals.

Deferred tax liability or asset is recognized on timing differences which is reversible between the accounting

income and the taxable income for the year and quantified using the tax rates and provisions, enacted or
subsequently enacted as on balance sheet date. -

Deferred tax assets if any, are recognized and carried forward to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty
thatsufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

During the year the company has created deferred tax liability of Rs.2,60,10,276.85 on the special infrastructure

reserve created and maintained under Sec 36(1) (VIIl) of Income Tax Act, 1961 for the year 2006-2007 and year 2007-
2008by charging to Profit and Loss Account for the current year.

The break up of deferred tax liabilities is as under -

(Amount in Rs.)

Description As on 31.03.2008 As on 31.03.2007
(a) Deferred Tax Assets(+)

(i Depreciation 0.00 206505.87
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities(-)

(i Amortization (Net of Reversal) -7764790.12 -5928088.88
(il Depreciation -1,02,215.72 0.00
(i) Infrastructure Reserve -26010276.84 0.00
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities(-)/Assets( +) -33877282.68 -5721583.01

11. During the year the company has allotted 20 crore equity number of shares of Rs . 10/- each aggregating Rs. 200
crore to Government of India on preferential basis and company has also received share application money of
Rs. 500 crore from Government of India during the year which isyetto be allotted.

12. The Company has no outstanding liability towards small scale industrial undertakings.

13. Fixed assets possessed by the company are treated as 'Corporate Assets' and not 'Cash Generating Units' as

defined by Accounting Standard (AS-28) ‘Impairment of Assets”. As on 31st March 2008, there were no events
orchangein circumstances, which indicate any impairmentin the assets.

14. Liabilities and assets denominated in foreign currency have been translated at following rate for the period
ended as given below:

S.no Exchange Rate 31.03.2008 31.03.2007

i o Rs/USS 39.90 N.A.

15. During the year company has entered into interest rate swaps to hedge its borrowing cost which include
INBMK swap (Indian currency swap) of Rs. 100 crore on equal amount of under lying and JPY COUPON swap
(Foreign exchange derivative) of Rs. 100 crore on equalamount of under lying where the marked to market on
underlying is Rs 4.64 crore and marked to market l0ss of Rs. 50.08 lacs on INBMK swap is provided and in JPY
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COUPON swap where the company has taken five years forward cover and fully hedge its currency risk by
saving 8.82% against payment of 7.46% for five years and as on balance sheet date the marked to market of
the under lying is Rs.7.64 crore against the mark to market of Rs. 12.84 crore for the derivative transaction of
JPY COUPON swap which has not been provided for in the accounts due to unique nature of transaction
entered by the company. The complete detailed disclosure as on Balance Sheet date isasunder:

S.No. Particular Currency Derivatives Interest rate derivatives
1. Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)

al For hedging (Rs.) NIL 200.00 Crore

b} For trading NIL NIL
2. Marked to market positions (1]

a) Asset (Rs.) NIL -13.34 Crore

b) Liability (Rs.) NIL + 12.28 Crore
position of Marked to Market of above Transactions after Balance Sheet Date is as under:-
S.No. Particular Currency Derivatives Interest rate derivatives
1. Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)

a) For hedging (Rs.) NIL 200.00 Crore

b) For trading NIL NIL
2. Marked to market positions (1]

a) Asset (Rs) NIL -10.99 Crore

b) Liability (Rs.) NIL +13.24 Crore

16. As on balance sheet date company is having unexpired incomes of Rs 4.61 crore on account of terminated swaps

which are deferred and recognized over the shorter of the remaining contractual life of the swap or the remaining
life of the asset/ liability.—

17. Break up of "Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account is a:

follows:

(Rs. In lacs
ltem 31.03.08 31.03.07
provision for Depreciation on Investment 227.45 2.00
Provision towards NPAS NIL NiL
Floating provisions for NPAs NIL NIL
Provisions towards Standard Assets 619.27 56.9¢
Provision made towards Income Tax 621.66 160.3¢
(including FBT & Wealth Tax)
Other Provisions and Contingencies 50.08 NI
TOTAL 1518.46 219.3

18. Asper the Government of India guidelines, IIECL would be regulated directly by the Government of Indiaand und
a "sui-generis” regulatory regime for IIFCL, an oversight committee of Secretaries has been constituted by fti
Government of India for regulating the company affairs read with SIFTI guidelines issued by Govt. of India. Al
Accordingly Company is not required to registered as Non Banking Financial Company with RBI and hence Spec
Reserve as prescribed u/sec 45(1)C of RBI Actis not required to be created.
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19. Since, the bond liability is fully guaranteed by Government of India in the shape of in-principle guarantee issued
vide letter N0.6/8/2006 IF-I dated 21-6-2006 by Ministry of Finance, Debenture redemption reserve has not been
created. Further company vide its letter no. IIFCL/RES/2007-08/6643 dated 19.12.2007 to Ministry Of Finance has
sought exemption from creation Debenture Redemption Reserve.

20. During the period, company has provided for Rs.248.83 lacs (previous
to Government of India on borrowings made during the year on
Government of Indiaand accepted by the company.

year 97.33) as guarantee commission payable
pro-rata basis at the rate as prescribed by

21. During the period, company has created provisions of Rs.619.27 Lacs for current year (previous year Rs. 56.98 lacs)
with cumulative balance of Rs.676.25 as on Balance sheet date (previous year - Rs. 56.98 lacs) on standard assets of
R$1690.64 lacs (previous year Rs.142.46 crore ) & shown the same as Reserve For Standard Assets u/s 36 (1) (viia) (c) of
Income Tax Act 1961 under Reserve and Surplus. -

22. There are prior period gain of Rs 24,31,918.73 (net of prior period expenditure of Rs 1,51,835.50) which is shown

separately in profit and loss account. Prior period gain is mainly on account of reversal of guarantee commission
of Rs. 25,75,342.47 payable on S.B.O.T loan other misc. Income of Rs 8411.76 and Prior period expenditure of
Rs.151835.50 due to short provision of Expenditurein previous year.

23. During the year ended 31.03.2008, the Company had incurred expenditure related to formation of offshore

subsidiary company which is shown under the head Current Assets, being the certain amount is recoverable as

technical Assistance from the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development and the balance amount is
recoverable from subsidiary company.

24. Payments made for the purpose of construction/renovation of new office premises taken on lease is capitalized
and shown as capital work in progress being yetto be putin use.

25. Theloans made by the company are considered as good in nature and recoverable as on 31.03.2008 and considered

secured against future cash flows of the projects financed on non recourse basis.

26. Balance appearing under loans, and various debit and credit balances as on the Balance Sheet date are subject to

confirmation and reconciliation. During the year, the Company has sent letters seeking confirmation of balances
toborrowers, However confirmations are yet to be received.

27. Previous year figures have been re-grouped /re-arranged wherever practicable to make them comparable to the
current year presentation.

28. Balance sheet abstracts and Company's General Business profile as per Part IV of Schedule VI of the Companies Act
1956 is enclosed as per appendix.

29. ScheduleltoXIXforman integral part of Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account.

Signed in terms of our report of even date

For Gupta Nanda & Co.

For India Infrastructure Finance Company Ltd.
Chartered Accountants

Sanjive Nanda S.S. Kohli Dr. Subas Pani

(Partnen (Chairman and Managing Director) {(Director)
Membership No.87108

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 02.05.2008
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BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT & COMPANY'S
GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

v

Registration Details
Registration No.
Balance Sheet Date

144520

31.03.2008

Capital raised during the period { Amount in Rs. Lacs)

Public Issue
Bonus Issue

NIL
NIL

State Code

Rights Issue
Private Placement

(including share application money
of Rs 50000 lacs pending allotment)

Position of Mobilization and Deployment of Funds (Amount in Lacs)

Total Liabilites
Sources of Funds

Paid Up Capital g
(including share application money
of Rs 50000 lacs pending allotment)

Secured Loans

Application of Funds

Net Fixed Assets

Net Current Assets

Accumulated Losses :
Performance of Company (Amount in Lacs)
Turnover

-

+/- Profit/Loss Before Tax
Earning per Share in Rs.

438750

80000

NIL

30

149533

NIL

12019

3376
0.65

Total Assets

Reserve & surplus (includes DTL)

Unsecured Loans

Investments/Loans/DTA

Misc. Expenditure

Total Expendiure
{Net of prior period adjustment
Of Rs 24 lacs )

+ /- Profit/Loss After Tax
Dividend Rate%

Generic names of three Principal products/services of the Company

Item Code No. (ITC Code) : NA
Product Description
Iitem Code No. (ITC Code) : NA
Product Description
Item Code No. (ITC Code) : NA
Product Description

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 02.05.2008
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Financial Services

{Rs in Lacs)

NIL
70000

438750

3557

349762

283477

279

8643

2481
NIL

For M/S GUPTA NANDA & CO.
(Chartered Accountants)

(SANJIVE NANDA)

Partner

M.No.: 87108
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 619(4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT

1956 ON THE ACCOUNTS OF INDIA INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED NEW DELHI FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2008.

‘The preparation of financial statement of India Infrastructure Finance Company Limited New Delhi for the year ended
31st March 2008 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 1956 isthe
responsibility of the management of the company. The statutory auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India under Section 619(2) of the Companies Act, 1956 is responsible for expressing opinion on these financial
statements under section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956 based on independent audit in accordance with the auditing

and assurance standards prescribed by their professional body the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Thisis
stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 2nd may 2008. -

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India have conducted a supplementary audit under section 619(3)
(b) of the Companies Act, 1956 of the financial statements of India Infrastructure Finance Company Limited, New Delhi
for the year ended 31st March 2008. This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to
the working papers of the statutory auditor and is limited primarily to enquiries of the statutory auditor and company
personal and a selective examination of some of the accounting records. Based on my supplementary audit, | would
like to highlight the following significant matter under section 619(4) of the Companies Act, 1956 which has come tomy

attention and which in my view is necessary for enabling a better understanding of the financial statements and the
related Audit Report.

Comment on Disclosure:

“The Basic and diluted earning per share works out to Rs.1.12 instead of Rs.0.65 as reported in the Profit and
Loss account.”

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

(Ghazala Meenai)
Principal Director of Commercial Audit
& Ex-Officio Member Audit Board Iil, New Delhi

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 04 July 2008
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The Board of Directors

India Infrastructure Finance Company Limited
1201-1207, Naurang House, K. G. Marg,

New Delhi110001.

We have examined the registers, records and documents of India Infrastructure Finance Company Limited ("the

company") for the financial year ended on March 31, 2008 according to the provisions of The Companies Act, 1956 and
the Rules framed under that Act;

Based on our examination and verification of the records produced before us and according to the information and
explanations given to us by the Company, we report that the Company has, in our opinion, complied with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”) and the Rules made under the Act, with regard to:

a)  maintenance of various statutory registers and making necessary entries therein;

b) service of documents by the company on its Members, and the Registrar of Companies;

¢ Notice of Board meetings and Committee meetings of Directors;

d) the meetings of Directorsand Committees of Directors including passing of resolutions by circulation;
el minutes of proceedings of General Meetings and of Board and other meetings;

f) approval of shareholders, the Board of Directors, the Committee of Directors and government authorities,
wherever required, as the basic authority flows from the Central Government;

g) Constitution of the Board of Directorsin pursuance of Central Government notification.

h) appointment of Auditors in keeping with the appointment letter received from the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India;
We further report that no prosecution was initiated against or show cause notice received by the Company and no

fines or penalties emanating therefrom were imposed on the Company under the Act against the Company, its
Directors and Officers.

For D. Verma & Associates,

Company Secretaries

Sabina Dinesh Verma,
Partner

FCS 4100
Place: New Delhi

Date: 11.07.2008
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at
31st March, 2008
&
Consolidated Profit & Loss Account
for the Year Ended 31st March, 2008




AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF INDIA INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

1

We have examined the attached Consolidated Balance sheet of India Infrastructure Finance Company Limited ("the
Company”) and its subsidiary (“the Group") as at 31st March, 2008, the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statements of the Group for the year ended on that date, both annexed thereto. These

financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's Management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As stated in Item B 1(c) relating to Notes to the Accounts of Schedule XIX, In respect of foreign subsidiary, assets

aggregating Rs. 41.00 (Rupees Forty One Only), and liabilities aggregating Rs. 41.00 (Rupees Forty One Only) have
beenincorporated on the basis of the information availabie, in the absence of audited accounts.

As stated in Item B (26) relating to Notes to the Accounts of Schedule XIX, the Some of the balances shown under

loans, advances and other debits/ credits in so far as these have since not been confirmed, realized, discharged or
adjusted are subject to reconciliation.

We report that the consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company's Management in
accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard 21 (Consolidated Financial statements), issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and on the basis of the separate audited financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiary included in the consolidated financial statements.

Based on our audit and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we are of the
opinion that the aforesaid consolidated financial statements, subject to our comments in paragraph 3 & 4 and in
Item B (5) & B (15) relating to Notes to the Accounts of Schedule XIX, give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(@ inthe case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31st
-~

2008.

(b) in the case of the Consolidated Profit and Loss account, of the consolidated profit of the Group for the year
ended on that date; and

(c) Inthe case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows of the Group for the year ended on that
date.

Place: N. Delhi

Dated: 02.05.08

For Gupta Nanda & Co.
(Chartered Accountants)

(Sanjive Nanda)
Partner
M.No.: 87108
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 212 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956,
RELATING TO SUBSIDIARY

NAME OF THE SUBSIDIARY INDIA INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE

COMPANY (UK) LIMITED

1. The Finance year of the subsidiary ended on March 31, 2008
2. (@ Number of Shares held by India Infrastructure Finance Co.Ltd. 1 Equity shares of USD 1 each fully
(holding company) as on March, 31, 2008 paid
(b) Extent of interest of the holding company at the end of the 100%
financial year of the subsidiary
3. Date from which it became a subsidiary Feb. 7, 2008
4. The net aggregate amount of Profit/ (loss) and reserves of the -

subsidiary so far as it concerns the members of the holding company-

(@ Dealt with in the holding company's accounts by way
of dividend on the shares held in subsidiary

() For the financial year of the subsidiary company NIL

(il For the previous financial year of the subsidiary since it NIL
became the holding company's subsidiary

(b) Not dealt with in the holding company's accounts:
(i For the financial year of the subsidiary NIL

(i For the previous financial years of the subsidiary since it NIL
became the holding company's subsidiary
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS on 31st March 2008

(Rs.)
DESCRIPTION Schedule As on 31st As on 31st
No. March,2008 March, 2007
_ (Audited) (Audited)
] SOURCES OF FUNDS
(1) Shareholder's Funds
(a) Share Capital | 3,000,000,000.00 1,000,000,000.00
{b) Reserve and Surplus I 321,809,437.74 74,179,954.94
(¢) Share Application Money (Pending Allotment) 5,000,000,000.00
(2) Loan Funds
(a) Secured Loans 1] - 696,109,997.30
(b) Unsecured Loans "] 34,976,210,186.00 6,073,481,683.00
(3) Defferred tax liability (Net of Asset) \' 33,877,282.68 5,721,583.01
TOTAL 43,331,896,906.42 7,849,493,218.25
|| APPLICATIONS OF FUNDS
{1} Fixed Assets Vi
(@) Gross Block 4,531,106.98 3,778,549.98
Less ;: Depreciation 1,854,767.26 997,197.19
Net Block 2,676,339.72 2,781,352.79
(b) Capital Work -in-Progress 370,825.00 -
(2) Investments VIl 11,441,317,079.58 1,045,241,710.15
(3) Infrastructure Loans Wi 16,906,379,442.57 1,424,603,571.54
(4) current Assets, Loans & Advances IX
(a) Cash & Bank Balance 15,170,383,994.23 5,462,112,493.65
(b) Other Current Assets 155,066,580.49 141,445,712.05
(c) Loans & Advance 170,899,191.97 55,277,638.22
15,496,349,766.69 5,658,835,843.92
Less: Current Liabilities and Provisions X
(a) Current Liabilities 468,834,696.82 273,104,411.81
(b) Provisions = 74,261,654.25 26,305,533.27
543,096,351.07 299,409,945.08
(5) Net Current Assets 14,953,253,415.62 5,359,425,898.84
(6) Miscellaneous Expenditure to the extent Xl 27,899,803.93 17,440,684.93
not written off or adjusted
significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the XiX

Accounts
TOTAL

43,331,896,906.42

7,849,495,218.25

signed in terms of our report of even date

For Gupta Nanda & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Sanjive Nanda
(Partner)
Membership No.87108

Place: New Delhi
pated: 02.05.2008
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S.S. Kohli
(Chairman and Managing Director)

Dr. Subas Pani
(Director)



CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

For the Year Ended on 31st March 2008

vi

DESCRIPTION

INCOME
Income from Operations
Other Income

Add: Deferred income on account of
Depreciation Charged on Fixed assets acquired
out of Government Grant

TOTAL INCOME (A)

EXPENDITURE

Cost of Borrowings

Payments to and provisions for employees
Establishment and other Expenses

Provision for contigencies

Provision for decline in value of investments
Depreciation

TOTAL EXPENDITURE (B)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
ADD : PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS
PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Less(-Add(+) : Provision for taxes
- Current Year ;-
Tax
Interest
-Earlier Year :-
Tax

Lesst-/Add(+) : Deferred Tax Liability(-)/Asset( +)

Less(-/Add(+) : Provision for Fringe benefit tax

Profit After Tax Available For Appropriations
Basic & Diluted Earning per Share of Rs.10/- each

Schedule
No.

For the year
ended 31st
March, 2008
(Audited)

X
X

1,118,921,299.77
82,469,107.85

499,601.64
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(Rs.)

For the year
ended 31st
March, 2007

- (Audﬁed}

363,014,709.60
38,606,987.12

638,737.44

1,201,890,009.26

402,260,434.16

XV
xXv
xvi

806,720,822.85
11,852,464.92
19,549,047.59
5,008,129.00
22,745,000.00
Vi 857,570.07

286,582,397.60
7,564,624.76
13,167,625.68
200,000.00
994,384.73

866,735,034.43

308,509,032.77

335,156,974.83
2,431,918.73
337,588,893.56

XVl

(61,473,571.00)
(254,450.00)

862,000.00
(28,155,699.67)
(438,088.45)
248,129,084.44
0.65

XVl

Amount in Rs. (Refer note no. B(8) of schedule -XI)X)
Vil significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the accounts XX

93,751,401.39

93,751,401.39

(15,807,850.00)

(128,759.00)
(5,886,504.01)
(230,979.00)
71,697,309.38
0.51

Signed in terms of our report of even date

For Gupta Nanda & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Sanjive Nanda
(Partner)
Membership No.87108

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 02.05.2008

For India Infrastructure Finance Company Ltd.

S.S. Kohli
(Chairman and Managing Director)
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS
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(Rs.)
As on 31st As on 31st
March,2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)
SCHEDULE - |
SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED CAPITAL
1,000,000,000 equity shares (Previous year 1,000,000,000) 10,000,000,000.00 10,000,000,000.00
of Rs. 10/- each
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP CAPITAL
300,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 3,000,000,000.00 1,000,000,000.00
(Previous year 100,000,000 Equity Shares of 10 each)
TOTAL %,000,000,000.00 1,000,000,000.00
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Description

Opening Balance
as on 01.04.2007

(RS.)
Additions/ Deductions/ Closing Balance
Adjustments Adjustments as on 31.03.2008

during the year during the year

SCHEDULE - Il
RESERVES & SURPLUS

Provision for Standard Assets
36(1) (viia) (c) of Income Tax Act,1961

Special Infrastructure Reserve
created u/s 36(1) (viii)
of Income Tax Act, 1961

Capital Reserve for Fixed Assets

Profit and Loss Account
Total
Previous Year

5,698,414.29

61,927,103.48 - 67,625,517.77

31,308,867.77 45,214,453.33 E 76,523,321.10
1,851,258.56 = 499,601.64 1,351,656.92
35,321,414.32 140,987,527.63 - 176,308,941.95
74,179,954.94 248,129,084.44 499,601.64 321,809,437.74
3,121,383.00 73,686,570.88 2,627,998.94 74,179,954.94

61 Annual Report
200708




(RS.)

As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)

SCHEDULE - 1l
SECURED LOANS

(A) Overdraft against FDR of Dena Bank
(B) Interest accrued & due on Secured Loans

TOTAL
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695,406,648.30

703,349.00

696,109,997.30
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(Rs.)
As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)
SCHEDULE - IV
UNSECURED LOANS - RUPEES
(A) BONDS
(@ Long Term Loans
(i Guaranteed by Government of India & redeemable at Par 5,000,000,000.00 5,000,000,000.00
Non Cenvertible 8.70% Bonds - Redemption on 02/09/2016
5000 Bonds of Face Value Rs 10 Lakhs each y
(Previous Year 5000 bonds of face value of Rs.10Lakhs each)
(il Guaranteed by Government of India & redeemable at Par 2,000,000,000.00 e
Non Convertible 8.82% Bonds - Redemption on 19.12.2022
2000 Bonds of Face Value Rs 10 Lakhs each (Previous Year NIU)
TOTAL A 7,000,000,000.00 5,000,000,000.00
(B) OTHER BORROWINGS
(al Long Term
i} Loans - LIC of Indiaf Guaranteed by Govt. of India) 10,000,000,000.00 :
il Loan -NSSF 15,000,000,000.00 .
il Loans State bank of Travancore 2,437,911.00 1,050,000,000.00

(b} Short Term

Loan Bank Of india

2,973,772,275.00 =
Interest accrued and due on Loans -

23,481,683.00

TOTALB 27,976,210,186.00 1,073,481,683.00

TOTAL (A +B) 34,976,210,186.00 6,073,481,683.00

Notes to schedule - IV

1 Long Term Loans due for repayment within one year are Rs 24,37,911.00 (previous year NIL )
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As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)
SCHEDULE -V
DEFFERED TAX ASSETS / LIABILITY( Net of Assets)
() Deffered tax Liability
(a) 0On account of Depreciation 102,215.72
{b) On account of Stamp Duty 7,764,790.12 5,928,088.88
(c) On account of Infrastructure Reserve Created u/sec
36(1)(viiD) of Income Tax Act,1961 26,010,276.84 -
Net Deffered Tax liability 33,877,282.68 5,928,088.88
(il Deffered tax Assets
{a) On Account of Depreciation - 206,505.87
Net Deffered Tax Assets - 206,505.87
Net Deffered Tax Liability 33,877,282.68 5,721,583.01
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As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)
SCHEDULE - VII
INVESTMENTS
LONG TERM INVESTMENT
Quoted Investment
(a) Power Finance Corporation 300,000,000.00 300,000,000.00
(b} 8.85% CAN BANK 80,000,000.00 80,000,000.00
(C) 8.85% SBI 2021 200,000,000.00 200,000,000.00
(d) 7.99% GOI 2017 361,760,000.00
(e) 8.33% GOI 2036 160,590,000.00 252,275,000.00
(i Preacquisition period Interest paid 3,025,763.89 3,510,083.33
(@ Premium paid on Bank Securities 487,418.82 535,446.82

SHORT TERM INVESTMENT
Quoted Investment

@) UTI- Liquid
Unquoted Investment
(@ Investmentin Treasury bills
(b) Certificate of Deposit
{c) Dodballpur Iintegrated Textile park [PMDOI
(d) Pochampally Handloom Park Pvt. Ltd. [PMDOI

Sub Total

LESS: Provision for diminution in the value of Investments

TOTAL
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6,401,250,935.96

3,940,522,400.00
7,655,390.91
8,770,170.00

19,373,180.00
189,748,000.00

11,464,062,079.58

22,745,000.00

1,045,441,710.15

200,000.00

11,441,317,079.58

1,045,241,710.15




““lln

-
st
L 5 |
@]
=~

(Rs.)
As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)
SCHEDULE - Vil
INFRASTRUCTURE LOANS (ASSETS)
(A) ASSISTED CONCERNS = .
(B) OTHER INSTITUTIONS 16,906,379,442.57 1,424,603,571.54
TOTAL 16,906,379,442.57 1,424,603,571.54
Notes: -
1 The above amounts include interest and 43,885,258.00 438,447.00

other charges accrued but not due

2 Classification of Loans

(i) Secured by Future Cash Flows. Of Projects 16,906,379,442.57 1,424,603,571.54

(il Guaranteed by Central /State Governments

(il Against Prom. Notes & Usance Bills accepted /
Guaranteed by Banks

(iv) Unsecured
Notes:

Out of the above,

(i Considered good

16,906,379,442.57 1,424,603,571.54
(il Considered doubtful
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As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)
SCHEDULE - IX
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS & ADVANCES
(1) CURRENT ASSETS
{A) Cash and Bank Balance
fa Cashin hand 1,201.09 8,391.00

(2)

(b} Balances with Scheduled Banks
(i  -Current Accounts in India

(il - Current Account maintained by susidiary

(il - Fixed Deposit Accounts

(B) Other Current Assets
(a) Interest accrued on T bills
(b) Interest accrued on Govt. Securities

(c) Interest accrued on Certificate of Deposites

(d) Interest accured on Banks Securities
(e) Interest accured on Bonds

(f)  Interest accrued on FDRS

(@ Interest accrued on Flexi - SBT

(h) Other Current Assets

LOANS & ADVANCES _
Advances Recoverable in Cash or in Kind OR

For Value to be Received (Unsecured Considered Good)
(@ Irregation and Water Resources Finance Corporation Ltd.

(b) Advance Tax paid

(c) Tax deducted at source

(d) Advance FBT

(e) Income Tax Refundable 2006-07

(f)  Misc. Expenses

(@) Advance for Business Plan

(h) PHRD grant receivable

(il Expenses Incurred on behalf of subsidiary
() Interest Recoverable on Swaps

TOTAL (B)
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90,382,752.14
41.00
15,080,000,000.00

22,104,102.65

5,440,000,000.00

15,170,383,994.23

5,462,112,493.65

7,300,798.10
79,975,920.78
21,589,151.84
7,369,808.03
37,585,354.27

1,245,547.47

609,012.62
1,457,083.33
7,575,775.04

11,812,931.53
7,369,808.03
112,305,941.02
35,459.00
279,701.48

155,066,580.49

141,445,712.05

23,006,200.00
44,783,000.00
55,190,888.97

453,709.00
40,293,609.00

2,332,600.00
226,255.00
4,612,930.00

6,400,000.00
46,843,335.75
217,775.00

47,527.47
1,769,000.00

170,899,191.97

55,277,638.22
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ITFCL
(Rs.)
As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
{Audited) (Audited)
SCHEDULE - X
CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
(A) CURRENT LIABILITIES
@ Interest accrued but not due on bonds and borrowings 411,520,547.36 246,604,985.81
(b) Unexpired income on swaps - 46,181,982.00 26,273,913.00
(€ LCCommission received In Advance 1,496,142.00 #
{d) Interest Excess Recovered 2,736,823.61 -
(e) PFdeducted on behalf of employees 10,161.20 -
(f)  Unclaimed Interest on 8.70% Bonds 156,078.00
(@ Provision for Loss on Interest Rate Swap 5,008,129.00 -
(hy  Other Liabilities 1,724,833.65 225,513.00
TOTAL 468,834,696.82 273,104,411.81
(B} PROVISIONS
(@ Provision for Income Tax 61,728,021.00 15,807,850.00
(b} Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax 438,088.45 230,979.00
(c)  Expenses 228,673.00 229,773.00
(d) Gratuity 474,747.58 235,151.45
(e) Leave Encashment 176,160.67 68,903.10
(fi) Government Gaurantee fees payable 3,815,963.55 9,732,876.72
(@ Stamp Duty Payable 7,400,000.00 -

TOTAL

74,261,654.25

26,305,533.27
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As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)
SCHEDULE - XI
{R) MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE
(to the extent not written off or adjusted)
(a) Stamp duty on Bonds
Opening balance 17,440,684.93 =
Stamp duty paid on Bonds 7,400,000.00 18,500,000.00
Less : Written off during the period/year (1,996,348.00) (1,059,315.07)
22,844,336.93 17,440,684.93
(b) Stamp duty on Shares
Stamp duty paid on Shares 2,000,000.00
Less : Written off during the period/year (400,000.00) -
1,600,000.00 -
{c) Defferred Revenue Expenses
Defferred Revenue Expenses incurred during the year 4,161,100.00 -
Less : Written off during the period/year (705,633.00)
3,455,467.00
Total 27,899,803.93 17,440,684.93
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(Rs.)
As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)
SCHEDULE - XlI
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS
@ On Lending Operations 576,569,965.24 18,724,540.80
{b) On Investment Operations
(Y Interest (Gross) 16;1,494.363.27 79,319,320.79
(ih  Loss/Profit on Sale of Government Securities § (482,850.89) 34,194,755.00
Less : Amortization of Premium Paid on HTM Securities (48,028.00) (22,833.18)
{iii  Dividend on Liquid Mutual Fund 45,328,852.31 -
(iv) Profit on Sale of CD 1,782,951.00 -
(v) Profit on sale of UTI Money Market Fund 860,860.14
Less : Loss on Sale of UTI Liquid Mutual Fund (618,750.00) -
(c) Interest/discount on other deposits
(il  Interest on Bank FDR 334,033,936.70 230,798,926.19
TOTAL 1,118,921,299.77 363,014,709.60
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As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)
SCHEDULE - X1l
OTHER INCOME
@ Other Income 50,331.00 20,000.00
(b) Short and Excess - 490.12
(©)  Interest earned on Flexi Accounts 516,217.00 85,205.00
(d) Gain on Interest rate Swaps 3,611,563.00 743,105.00
(e) Upfront Fees 73,006,304.56 37,758,187.00
(fl Commission Recd. On L/C 4,484119.79
(@ Liguadated Damages 13,033.00 -
(hy  Commitment Charges 787,539.50
TOTAL 82,469,107.85 38,606,987.12
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ITFCL
(Rs.)
As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)
SCHEDULE - XIV
COST OF BORROWINGS
(A) Fixed
{  Interest on Bonds & Debentures 531,629,919.00 246,604,985.81
(il Amortization of Borrowing cost < 1,996,348.00 1,059,315.07
(B) Others

() Interest on Bank Borrowings

(il Guarantee Fees to GOI

103,591,291.00

29,185,220.00

24,862,169.30 9,732,876.72
(il Interest on (NSSF) 3,698,630.00
(iv) Interest on loan from LIC 140,942,465.55 -
TOTAL 806,720,822.85 286,582,397.60
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(Rs.)

As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)
SCHEDULE - XV

PAYMENTS TO AND PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEES
(@ Salaries and Allowances 7,779,240.40 4,894,202.01
(b} Director's Remuneration 841,320.00 791,438.00
(c) Contribution to Provident, Pension and other Funds 670,898.10 264,470.57
(d) Reimbursements 1,782,966.42 1,190,719.18
(e} Contract Employees Payment 778,040.00 423,795.00
TOTAL 11,852,464.92 7,564,624.76
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(Rs.)

As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) {Audited)
SCHEDULE - XVI
ESTABLISHMENT AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
Advertising Expenses 350,680.00 242,068.00
Auditors' Remuneration 180,000.00 50,000.00
Bank Charges 88,738.00 24,450.30
Books and Newspaper ~ 53,627.10 38,369.91
Business promotion & development Expenses 1,140,232.00 781,349.00
Car Running and Maintenance Expenses 413,464.42 335,788.94
CCIL Charges 20,519.00 77,021.33
Directors' Sitting Fees 75,000.00 30,000.00
Directors Foreign Travelling 953,869.00 209,622.00
Directors Travelling 103,002.00 270,832.00
Electricity 545,451.60 279,020.00
Fees for Seminars 18,700.00 103,300.00
Filling fees 5,996.00 11,276.00
Foreign Exchange Fluctuations 126,105.42 #
Honorarium 15,000.00 31,500.00
Insurance 35,819.47 30,247.09
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets - 8,193.46
Miscellaneous Expenses 43,623.50 84,344.71
Miscellaneous Expenses Written off 1,105,633.00 -
Office Expenses 534,282.05 225,397.68
Other Tours, traveling & Conveyance Expenses 1,320,246.30 766,949.55
Postage & Telegram 116,113.00 54,816.00
Printing & Stationary 429,434.00 396,222.76
Professional Fees 2,217,935.00 3,987,483.60
Recruitment Expenses 954,318.50 -
Rent 7.421,093.00 3,005,520.00
Repairs and Maintenance 187,629.00 173,745.91
Short & Excess 351.92 -
Stamp duty Paid i 1,000,480.00
Subscription A/c 587,713.13 581,728.25
Telephone Expenses 504,471.18 367,899.19
TOTAL 19,549,047.59 13,167,625.68
Notes to schedule XVi
1 Auditors' Remuneration includes:
Audit Fees 100,000.00 50,000.00
Tax Audit Fees 25,000.00
Other Services 55,000.00 -
180,000.00 50,000.00
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As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)
SCHEDULE - XVIi
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS
Prior Period Income:
Interest & Other Charges 2,575,342.47
Miscellaneous Income 8,411.76 -

Sub Total

Prior Period Expenses:
Rent Reimbursement
Debenture Trustship Fees
Interest & other Charges
Miscellaneous Expenses

Sub Total
Prior Period Adjustment (Net)
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71,642.50

43,570.00

36,623.00
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(RS.)
As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
(Audited) (Audited)
SCHEDULE - XVl
APPROPRIATIONS
Transfer towards Reserve for Standard Assets 61,927,103.48 5,698,414.29

U/s 36(1) (viia) (c) of Income Tax Act, 1961

Transfer to Special Reserve Created & manintained
U/s 36(1) (vii) of Income Tax Act, 1961

Balance Carried to Balance Sheet

TOTAL

45,214,453.33
-

140,987,527.63

31,308,867.77

34,690,027.32

248,129,084.44

71,697,309.38
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SCHEDULE XiIX

Significant Accounting Policies And Notes To The Accounts for Consolidation

(A) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.1 The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the individual audited financial statements of India

Infrastructure Finance Company Limited and un-audited financial statements its subsidiary India

Infrastructure Finance Company (UK) Limited, as on March 31, 2008 and for the year ended on that date. The

Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the following basis:

) TheFinancial statements of the Company and its subsidiary have been consolidated on a line by line basis
by adding together the book values of like items of Assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after
eliminating intra group transactions resulting in unrealized profits or losses as per Accounting Standard
21 on "Consolidated Financial Statements’ as notified by the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2006.

il The Financial Statements of the subsidiary, used in the consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting
dateas that of the Company, i.e. March 31, 2008.

1.2. The Financial Statements of the following subsidiary have been Consolidated as per Accounting Standard 21

on“consolidated Financial Statements” as notified by the companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006:

Current Year Previous Year

Name of Subsidiary Country of Proportion of Proportion of

Incorporation ownership ownership
Interest (%) Interest (%)

IIFCL U.K. Limited United Kingdom 100% N.A.

2. The Financial accounts have been prepared on the going concern basis with accrual concept and in
accordance with the accounting policies and practices consistently followed unless otherwise stated.
3. REVENUERECOGNITION

3@ Upfront fee on loans is considered as income in cases where loan documents have been signed on
allocated amount andsame isaccounted for on accrual basis.

3(b) Any gain or losses on the terminated swap are deferred and recognized over the shorter of the
remaining contractual life of the swap or the remaining life of the asset /liability.

3(c) Recoveriesinborrower'saccountsare appropriated as per the loan agreements.

3(d)  Income from Dividend is accounted for in the period of declaration of dividend and credited to the
investment account of the company.

3(e)  Expenditure incurred on raising of funds including stamp duty on Bonds and credit rating fee etc. are
amortized proportionately over the period of its tenure. Stamp duty paid on issue of shares is
amortized over the period of five years.

3 Expenditure incurred on Professional fee etc. related to development of business plan , H.R. plan I.T
plan etc of the company which are vet to be implemented and benefits of such plan will available in
futureare deferred and amortized over period of five years.

4. PROVISIONS/WRITE OFF AGAINST LOANS AND OTHER CREDIT FACLITIES

The company has followed prudential norms for asset classification and income recognition as per RBI circular

DBOD circular no. BP.BC.15/21.04.048/2006-07 dated 01.07.2006 which were approved by the Board of Directors

of thecompany and are applicable with effect from 01 .04.2007.

5. INVESTMENTS
5(@) In case of quoted Investments valued at lower of cost or market priceattheyearend.
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5(b)  Incaseof investmentin Mutual Fund valued at lower of cost or net assetvalue attheyearend.
5(c) Unquoted Long term Investments are carried at cost.
FOREICN EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

6.1 The following transactions are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of
transactions.

6.11a) Expensesandincomein foreign currency and
6.1(b) Theamountsborrowed and lentin foreign currency

6.2 The following balances are translated in Indian currency at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of
closing of accounts -

6.2(a ContingentLiabilityin respect of Letter of Credit issued inforeign currency

6.2(b} Loansgrantedin foreign currency

6.2(c) ExpensesonIncome accrued but notdue on foreign currency loans/borrowings

6.3 The actual/translation gain/loss (net) on foreign currency loan assets and liabilities are charged /
credited to profitand loss account.

FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

7(a) Fixed assetsare carried at cost less accumulated deprecation.

7(b)  Fixed assets acquired out of government grant received for set up of the company are stated at

- historical Cost of acquisition and stated at gross value without reducing government grants.

7(c) The addition to fixed assets are being capitalized on the basis of bills approved or estimated value of
work done as per contracts in cases where final bills are yet to be received / approved.

7(d)  Depreciation of fixed assets of the company is provided at the rates and manner provided in schedule

XIV of the Companies Act 1956 following written down value method. Depreciation on individual assets
having cost below Rs.5000.00is charged at 100% as prescribed in the aforesaid schedule.

ACCOUNTING FOR GOVERNMENT GRANTS

8@  Government grants related to non monetary assets for incorporation of company are set off against
total expenses incurred for incorporation in the earlier financial years and amount related to fixed
assetsis transferred to Capital Reserve for the fixed assets purchased.

8(b)  Government grants related to specific fixed assets are credited to Capital Reserve for Fixed Assets.
These grants are treated as deferred income and recognized in the profit and loss account over the
usefullife of assets in the proportion which depreciation on related assets is charged.

PHRD GRANT FOR FACILITATING INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCING

The expenditure which are eligible under PHRD Grant for facilitating infrastructure financing vide letter dated

25.10.2006 of International Bank for Reconstruction and Developmentare not charged to Profit & Loss Account
and are shown as receivables from PHRD.

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE

Expenses related to issue of Bonds are amortized over a maturity period of Bonds following 'Even Spread

Method' & following guidelines contained in Accounting Standard AS-16 “Borrowing Cost" related to specific
borrowing cost & non specific borrowing cost.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Since most of the Employees of the Company are on deputation, it is not possible for the company to calculate
actuarial valuation of leave encashment, gratuity and other retirement benefits payable to employees &
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therefore company will not be able to follow Accounting Standard AS-15 issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountant of India. However, company has provided amount of retirement benefit payable to parent
organization on estimated basis for deputation employees. Further None of the employees other than on
deputation is older than five year in the company and hence company has not provide for any liability of
retirement benefits for such employees. Further in respect of defined contribution scheme like provident
fund in respect of employees on deputation respective contributions are remitted to parent organization
and in respect of employees other than deputation, company is yet to create approved recognized fund and
hence employeesand employer contribution are shown under current liabilities and are invested in general.
DERIVATIVE ACCOUNTING

In respect of interest rate swaps entered by the company to hedge its borrowing cost which include INBMK
swap (Indian currency swap) and JPY COUPON swap (Foreign exchange derivative) on equal amount of under
lying where the marked to market loss on INBMK swap is provided and in JPY COUPON swap where the
company has taken five years forward cover and fully hedge its currency risk for five years the marked to

market for the derivative transaction has not been provided for in the accounts due to unique nature of
transaction entered by the company.

13. DEFFERED TAX ACCOUNTING

Keeping in view remarks of CAG Auditors in respect of previous year Balance Sheet during the current year
company has changed its accounting policy to create provision of Deferred Tax Liability on Special

Infrastructure Reserve created under section 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act 1961 and had this change not made
the profit of the company would had been higher by Rs 2,60,10,276.84.

(B) NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

{a) The Subsidiary considered in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements is India
Infrastructure Finance Company Limited (U.K) incorporated at United Kingdom.

(b) India Infrastructure Finance Company Limited has promoted a new subsidiary company during the year

on 7th February 2008 India Infrastructure Finance Company (U.K.) Limited. The company has commenced

operations subsequent to the date of Balance Sheet. The Company has received un-audited financial
statements for the year ended 2007-08.

(c) The consolidated fiffancial statements of India Infrastructure Finance company limited and un-audited

financial statements of its subsidiary India Infrastructure Finance Company (UK) Limited are based on

information available and yet to be approved by board of directors of subsidiary & any difference that
may arise on receipt of audited financial statements of the subsidiary will be adjusted at that time.

Contingent Liabilities not provided forinrespect of:

Ason 31.03.08 31.03.07

(@

(b)

©
(d)
(e

Estimated amount of contract 70.68 lacs
(including lease contract)

remaining to be executed on

capital account (net of advances)

NIL

Interest tax/Sales tax/ Property tax/ NIL
Trade tax pending in appeals based

On judicial pronouncementand/or

Legal opinion and other matters.

Guarantees issued - NIL

NIL

NIL
Rs.22,05,369/-
NIL

Claims notacknowledged as debts NIL

Letter of Creditissued Rs.3,40,03,76,774.91
(Issued in USD of 8,52,22,475.56 previous year NIL)
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(f)  The company has issued letters of comfort for disbursement of loans to Three borrowers amounting to

Rs. 3,40,03,76,774.91 (Previous year NIL)against which a sum of Rs. NIL (previous year NIL ) has been disbursed
toNILborrower.

The liability mentioned in point no. (a) above (Previous year: Nil), relates to contract entered by the company
for construction/renovation of new office premises taken on lease.

The liability mentioned in point no. (d) above (Previous year: ) relates to penal interest charged by State Bank
of Travancore due to non-compliance of terms and conditions of sanction for which company had contested

the demand and same is waived in respect of current year and previous year demand is charged to profit and
lossaccount.

The liability mentioned in point no. (e) above, relates to a Letter of Credit issued on behalf of three of the
borrowers of the company.

The companyhad availed loans of Rs.105 crores against sanctioned loan of Rs 200 crores from State Bank of
Travancore which is adjusted by the company after balance sheet date and as such company will not entered
I in to guarantee agreement and accordingly company has reversed guarantee commission of Rs 25,75,342.47
provide forin the financial year 2006-07 through prior period adjustment account..

4. Additionalinformation required as in Part Il of Schedule Vi

(Rs.in lacs)

Year Ended 31.03.2008 31.03.2007
Expenditure in Foreign Currencies (Actual outgo):
- Interest on borrowings 19.79 Nil
- Foreign Traveling 6.97 1.14
Total 26.76 1.14
Earnings in Foreign Currencies:
- Interest 27.21 Nil
Total 27.21 Nil
Auditors remuneration:
-Statutory Audit Fee 1.00 0.50
Tax Audit Fee 0.25 NIL
Other Matters 0.55 NIL
TOTAL Auditors remuneration: 1.80 0.50
Managerial Remuneration:
- Salary and allowances 8.41 7.91
- Contribution to PF and other funds 0.00 0.00
Perquisites 0.71 0.47
- Sitting fee to Directors 0.75 0.30
TOTAL Managerial Remuneration: 9.87 8.68
5. Provision for Gratuity, leave encashment, Sick leave and leave travel concession are accounted for on

estimated basis and not on Actuarial basis as prescribed by AS-15.
6.

The Company's main business is to provide finance for Infrastructure Projects and the company does not have

more than one reportable segment in terms of Accounting Standard No. 17 issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountant of India.

7. Related Party Disclosures:

A)  Managerial Remuneration and related party disclosure
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i) Key managerial personnel of the company during the period:-

-Sh.S.S. Kohli -Chairman & Managing Director
-Professor G.Raghuram -Director

il Paymenttoand on behalf of related parties

(@) Directors Remuneration and perquisites 9.12 lac (Previous Year 8.38 Lacs)
{To ShriS.S.Kohli)

(b) Sitting Fees to Directors 0.75lac (Previous Year 0.30 Lacs)
(ToProfessor G.Raghuram)

Investment in subsidiaries
Government of India has promoted the company for providing long term finance of more than ten year for
developmentof infrastructure projectsin India. The company has established one foreign subsidiary in UK.

The un-audited financial statements of subsidiary India Infrastructure Finance (UK) Limited on the basis of
information available and yet to be approved by Board Of Directors of subsidiary, are attached as required

under Sec 212 of The Companies Act, 1956 . The subsidiary was incorporated on 7th February 2008, and
operationsareyet to bestarted.

The detail of amount recoverable from subsidiary on account of expenditure incurred by holding company on
behalf of the subsidiary is given as under.

Name of the subsidiary/company Amountason 31.03.2008 Amountason 31.03.2007
IIFC(UK) Limited Rs.226255.00 NIL

Provisions of Accounting Standard (AS-19)

(@ Financial Lease: NIL

(b) Operating Lease : The company has taken office premises under operating lease with varying lease
periods.

In terms of Accounting Standard no. 20 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants, Earning per share
(Basic & Diluted) is worked out as follows :-

Particulars Amount Current Amount Rs. Previous

Rs. In lacs year (*) In lacs year
Nominal Value of share (Rs.) 10/- 10/-
Number of Equity Share (No.) 30,00,00,000 10,00,00,000

Net profit before provision for taxation
for earlier years, extraordinary items and

effect of change in accounting policy. 1376.93 0.63 348.18 0.51
Provision for earlier years/ Prior period items 32.94 0.02 “1.29 -0.001
Net Profit (Total 1409.87 0.65 346.90 0.51

EPS for the current year has been calculated on weighted average number of equity shares of 21,83,56,164.38
(Previous Year 6,87,82,739.73)

In terms of Accounting Standard (AS-22) “Accounting for Taxes on Income”, for the current period is
determined on the basis of taxable income and the tax credit computed in accordance with the provisions of
the Income Tax Act 1961 and based on expected outcome of assessments/appeals.
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Deferred tax liability or asset is recognized on timing differences which is reversible between the accounting

income and the taxable income for the year and quantified using the tax rates and provisions, enacted or
subsequently enacted as on balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assetsif any, are recognized and carried forward to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty
thatsufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

During the year the company has created deferred tax liability of Rs.2,60,10,276.85 on the special
Infrastructure reserve created and maintained under Sec 36(1) VIl of Income Tax Act, 1961 for the year 2006-
2007 and year 2007-2008by charging to Profit and Loss Account for the current year.

The break up of deferred tax liabilities is as under :-

- (Amount in Rs.)
Description - As on 31.03.2008 As on 31.03.2007
(a) Deferred Tax Assets(+)

(il  Depreciation 0.00 206505.87

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities(-)

(i  Amortization (Net of Reversal) -7764790.12 -5928088.88

(il Depreciation -1,02,215.72 0.00

{ii) Infrastructure Reserve -26010276.84 0.00

Net Deferred Tax Liabilities(-)/Assets( +) -33877282.68 -5721583.01

11. During the year the company has allotted 20 crore equity number of shares of Rs . 10/- each aggregating Rs. 200
crore to Government of India on preferential basis and company has also received share application money of
Rs. 500 crore from Government of India during the year which isyet to be allotted.

12. The Company has no outstanding liability towards small scale industrial undertakings.

13. Fixed assets possessed by the company are treated as 'Corporate Assets' and not 'Cash Generating Units' as
defined by Accounting Standard (AS-28) “Impairment of Assets”. As on 31st March 2008, there were no events
or change in circumstances, which indicate any impairmentin the assets.

14. Liabilities and assets denominated in foreign currency have been transiated at following rate for the period
ended asgiven below:

S.no Exchange Rate 31.03.2008 31.03.2007
1. Rs / USS 39.90 N.A.
15.

During the year company has entered into interest rate swaps to hedge its borrowing cost which include
INBMK swap (Indian currency swap) of Rs. 100 crore on equal amount of under lying and JPY COUPON swap
(Foreign exchange derivative) of Rs. 100 crore on equal amount of under lying where the marked to market on
underlying is Rs 4.64 crore and marked to market loss of Rs. 50.08 lacs on INBMK swap is provided and in JPY
COUPON swap where the company has taken five years forward cover and fully hedge its currency risk by
saving 8.82% against payment of 7.46% for five years and as on balance sheet date the marked to market of
the under lying is Rs.7.64 crore against the mark to market of Rs. 12.84 crore for the derivative transaction of
JPY COUPON swap which has not been provided for in the accounts due to unique nature of transaction
entered by the company. The complete detailed disclosure as on Balance Sheet date is as under-
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S.No. Particular Currency

Interest rate

Derivatives derivatives
1. Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)
a) For hedging (Rs.) NIL 200.00 Crore
b} For trading NIL NIL
2. Marked to market positions [1]
al  Asset (Rs.) NIL -13.34 Crore
b) Liability (Rs.) NIL + 12.28 Crore
Position of Marked to Market of above Trénsactions after Balance Sheet Date is as under:-
S.No.  Particular Currency !nterést rate
Derivatives derivatives
T Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)
al  For hedging (Rs.) NIL 200.00 Crore
b) For trading NIL NIL
2. Marked to market positions [1]
a) Asset (Rs.) NIL -10.99 Crore
b) Liability (Rs.) NIL +13.24 Crore
;8. As on balance sheet date company is having unexpired incomes of Rs 4.61 crore on account of termina&
swaps which are deferred and recognized over the shorter of the remaining contractual life of the swap or the
remaining life of the asset/ liability.
17. Break up of "Provisions and Contingencies" shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account is
as follows :
- (Rs. In lacs)
Item . 31.03.08 31.03.07
Provision for Depreciation on Investment 227.45 2.00
Provision towards NPAs NIL NIL
Floating provisions for NPAs NIL NIL
Provisions towards Standard Assets 619.27 56.98
Provision made towards Income Tax 621.66 160.39
(including FBT & Wealth Tax)
Other Provisionsand Contingencies 50.08 NIL
TOTAL 1518.46 219.37 -
18. As per the Government of India guidelines, IIFCL would be regulated directly by the Government of India and
under a "sui-generis" regulatory regime for IIFCL, an oversight committee of Secretaries has been constituted
by the Government of India for regulating the company affairs read with SIETI guidelines issued by Govt. of
India. And Accordingly Company is not required to registered as Non Banking Financial Company with RBl and
hence Special Reserve as prescribed u/sec 45(1)C of RBI Act is not required to be created.
19.

Since, the bond liability is fully guaranteed by Government of india in the shape of in-principle guarantee
issued vide letter No.6/8/2006 IF-l dated 21-6-2006 by Ministry of Finance, Debenture redemption reserve has
not been created. Further company vide its letter no. IIFCL/RES/2007-08/6643 dated 191 2.2007 to Ministry Of
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q Finance has sought exemption from creation Debenture Redemption Reserve.

20. During the period, company has provided for Rs.248.83 lacs (previous year 97.33) as guarantee commission

payable to Government of India on borrowings made during the year on pro-rata basis at the rate as
prescribed by Government of India and accepted by the company.

e 21. During the period, company has created provisions of Rs.619.27 Lacs for current year (previous year Rs. 56.98
lacs) with cumulative balance of Rs.676.25 as on Balance sheet date (previous year - Rs. 56.98 lacs) on standard

assets of Rs1690.64 lacs (previous year Rs.142.46 crore ) & shown the same as Reserve For Standard Assets u/s 36
(1) (viia) (c) of Income Tax Act 1961 under Reserve and Surplus.

22. Thereare prior period gain of RS 24,31,918.73 (net of prior period expenditure of Rs1,51,835.50) which is shown
separately in profit and loss account. Prior period gain is mainly_on account of reversal of guarantee

commission of Rs. 25,75,342.47 payable on S.B.0.T loan other misc. Income of Rs 8411.76 and Prior period
expenditure of Rs. 151835.50 due to short provision of Expenditure in previous year.

23. During the year ended 31.03.2008, the Company had incurred expenditure related to formation of offshore
subsidiary company which is shown under the head Current Assets, being the certain amount is recoverable as

technical Assistance from the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development and the balance
amountisrecoverable from subsidiary company.

24. Payments made for the purpose of construction/renovation of new office premises taken on lease is
capitalized and shown as capital work in progress being yet to be putin use.

25. The loans made by the company are considered as good in nature and recoverable as on 31.03.2008 and

considered secured against future cash flows of the projects financed on non recourse basis.

26. Balance appearing under loans, and various debit and credit balances as on the Balance Sheet date are subject
to confirmation and reconciliation. During the year, the Company has sent letters seeking confirmation of
balances to borrowers, However confirmations are yet to be received.

27. Previous year figures have been re-grouped /re-arranged wherever practicable to make them comparable to

the currentyear presentation.

28. Balance sheet abstracts and Group's General Business profile as per Part IV of Schedule VI of the Companies Act
1956 is enclosed as per appendix.

29. Schedulelto XiX formanintegral part of Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account.

Signed in terms of our report of even date

For Gupta Nanda & Co.

For India Infrastructure Finance Company Ltd.
Chartered Accountants

: Sanjive Nanda S.S. Kohli Dr. Subas Pani
(Partner) (Chairman and Managing Director) (Director)
Membership No.87108

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 02.05.2008
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Place: New Delhi
Dated: 02.05.2008 (Partner)
Membership No.87108

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For The Year Ended on 31st March, 2008

(Rs.)

As on 31st As on 31st
March, 2008 March, 2007
{Audited) (Audited)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax & Extraordinary items

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Provision/write offs

Loss on sale of assets

unexpired gain on Interest Swaps
Deferred Revenue Expenditure
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING
CAPITAL CHANGES

(Increase)/decrease in Current Assets
Increase/(decrease) in Current Liabilities
Cash Flow From Lending of Funds
Cash Flow From Investing activities
CASH GENERATION FROM OPERATIONS
Taxes paid

CASH FLOW BEFORE TRANSFER FROM
RESERVES

TRANSFER FROM CAPITAL RESERVE

OF FIXED ASSETS

NET CASH FROM OPERATIONS

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale of/ (Addition) to Investments
(Including Application Money)

Purchase of/ Advance for Fixed Assets
(including Leased Assets)

Sale proceed of Fixed Assets

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issue of share capital

Loans borrowed (net of repayments)
Expenses incidental to finance

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET CHANGE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT (A +B +C)

Opening Cash and Cash Equivalent
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalent

Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalent

337,588,893.56

93,751,401.39

857,570.07 994,384.73
30,903,138.00 1,282,148.25

- 8,193.46

19,908,069.00 26,273,913.00
(4,161,100.00) 3
585,096,570.63 122,510,040.83
(41,982,325.97) (143,035,777.52)

172,642,927.54
(15,481,775,871.03)
(10,418,868,397.43)

256,775,100.08
(1,424,603,571.54)
(1,045,464,543.33)

(25,384,887,096.26)

(2,234,018,751.48)

(102,436,925.22)
(25,487,324,021.48)

(499,601.64)

(53,465,073.75)
(2,287,483,825.23)

(638,737.44)

(25,487,823,625.12)

(2,288,122,562.67)

1,123,382.00

3,285,187.98

2,000.00

(1,125,382.00)

(3,283,187.98)

7,000,000,000.00 900,000,000.00
28,206,618,505.70 6,769,591,680.30
{9,400,000.00) (18,500,000.00)

35,197,218,505.70

7,651,091,680.30

9,708,271,500.58

5,359,685,929.65

5,462,112,493.65
15,170,383,994.23

102,426,564.00
5,462,112,493.65

9,708,271,500.58

5,359,685,929.65

Signed in terms of our report of even date

For Gupta Nanda & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Sanjive Nanda

5.S. Kohli

(Chairman and Managing Director)

Note:Figures for previous year have been regrouped and rearrange to make them comparable wherever considered necessary.

For India Infrastructure Finance Company Ltd.

Dr. Subas Pani
(Director)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT & GROUP'S
GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

(Rs in Lacs)
I.  Registration Details State Code
Registration No. : 144520
% Balance Sheet Date : 31.03.2008
Il Capital raised during the period { Amount in Rs. Lacs)
Public Issue - NIL Rights Issue ; NIL
Bonus Issue : NIL Private Placement ; 70000
1 (including shiire application money
| of Rs 50000 lacs pending allotment)
Il Position of Mobilization and Deployment of Funds (Amount in Lacs)
Total Liabilites 3 438750 Total Assets £ 438750
Sources of Funds
Paid Up Capital : 80000 Reserve & Surplus (Includes DTL) : 3557
(including share application money
of Rs 50000 lacs pending allotment)
Secured Loans : NIL Unsecured Loans 3 349762
Application of Funds
Net Fixed Assets : 30 Investments/Loans/DTA : 283477
Net Current Assets : 149533
Accumulated Losses : NIL Misc. Expenditure : 279
IV Performance of Company (Amount in Lacs)
‘ Turnover : 12019 Total Expendiure : 8643
| (Net of prior period adjustment
of Rs 24 lacs )
' +/- Profit/Loss Before Tax : 3376 +/- Profit/Loss After Tax : 2481
Earning per Share in Rs. 3 0.65 Dividend Rate% NIL

V. Generic names of three Principal products/services of the Company

Item Code No. (ITC Code) % NA

Product Description : Financial Services
Item Code No. (ITC Code) 2 NA

Product Description 3

Item Code No. (ITC Code) : NA

Product Description

For M/S GUPTA NANDA & CO.

Place: New Delhi (Chartered Accountants)

Dated: 02.05.2008

(SANJIVE NANDA)

Partner
M.No.: 87108
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